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Our Mission
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To promote a caring and non-violent
enviranment for the optimal growth and
development of our children.
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QOur Vision
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To be recognized as one of the leading
NGOs in the East Asian Region
providing quality child protection
programmes of both remedial and
preventive nature.
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We believe that children's survival, protection
and development should be given priority,
their views should be heard and given due
weight. In the application of these principles,
children of every race, creed and colour
should be given equal treatment.
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8. BIrSEHNSE 2. New Initiatives

. FERBEERNLEESERBRER a. Child Protection Institute: The Child

BRSNS IERSMH. Protection Institute was officially

launched in November 2013 providing

b. #BTEERZERMAMROINE -8 child protection training, parent

RFAIEIE OoBRT) 1220135115268 education and children therapeutic
28BEM7T i BT EERE 2P

groups. Experts from multi-disciplines

DE I FEOIFIHR RS - have been invited to be the Institute’s

honarary consultants.
c. 2ENRERMISIREETIE20145F18

2823 1HEN I ERINSF FETHRE b. Child Abuse Treatment Corner:
REEEC With the support of the Fu Tak lam
Foundation, we launched & two-year
], Hu; {__‘}}_'!i_-;‘[-”]_t}_]" L'\t- []"It’ Lll. [M Child Abuse Treatment Corner in April
Protection Centre 2013. The Treatment Corner services
The ACA Child Protection Centre Opening include children therapeutic groups to
Ceremony was held on 19 Novernber 2013, help abused children deal with negative
the World Day for Prevention of Child Abuse. emotions and express their emotions in
The Ceremony was officiated by Ms Carol appropriate ways, stress management
Yip, JF, Director of Social Welfare. We were groups to help parents with depressive
glad to have the presence of other guests symptoms and therapeutic groups for
including heads of NGOs, government batterers to help parents who physically
officials, District Council members and abuse their children.

chairpersons of Parent-teacher Associations.

c. Play Therapy Room: A play therapy
room was set up in Chuk Yuen Centre
to help children get in touch and deal
with their negative emotions in a secure

environment through play therapy.

: -"-«’Eiﬁﬁﬂ i ;j




10

End Corporal Punishment
Carnival

We organized a Child Protection Carnival on
the Sunday before the 30 April SpankOut
Day to raise public awareness on stopping
corporal punishment at home. Children as
human beings should have the same rights

as adults, they should not be spanked and

their voices should be heard.

Sharing Forum

We held & sharing forum on “Listen to
Children's Voice". Qur junior volunteers
presented a video clip, a2 drama and an
interactive sharing forum to share their views
and wishes. The issue of internet safety was
discussed and positive parenting tips were

shared.
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Adwve CACY

a.

Two press conferences were held
including the annual press conference
to share the child abuse statistics,
trends and recommendations for child
protection and the press conference to
share services of the Child Protection
for New Arrival with Children aged 0-5
Froject. Three services users shared
their stories of change at the press

conferences.

We submitted a position paper to the
Panel on Administration of Justice and
Leqal Services of the Legislation Council
1o express views on the handling of Sex
Crime cases.

. Responding to the Second Report of

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region under the Convention on the
Rights of the Child, we submitted
a position paper to the Panel on
Constitutional Affairs of the Legislation
Council.



d. Responding to the Population Policy
consultation, we submitted a position
paper to urge the government to
consider the possible impact on the life
children when formulating population
policies,

e. We met with the chair and a member
of the United Nations Committee on
the Rights of the Child who visited
Hong Kong to share on the child abuse

situation.

Publicity and Fundraising

a. To encourage parents and children
call the Parent-child Support Line
and promote the important message
of child protection to the public, a
series of promotional activities were
arganized including radio broadcasting,
bus and tram shelter billboards, video
broadecasting on Roadshow and multi-

media channel, etc,

b. The ACA Flag Day was successfully held
on 22 February 2014 with the support of

5,000 volunteers.

Professional Training in the
Mainland

Invited by the Oriental Agency for Social
Work in Shanghai, our Director and a social
worker conducted a child protection training
course for social workers on 8-10 July. The
content included an overview on the global
development of child protection wark,
identification and handling of suspected

child abuse cases, prevention and treatment.

Overseas Conference and

Collaboration

a. ACA continues to be a national partner
of the International Society for the
Prevention of Child Abuse and Neglect
(ISPCAN).

b. ACA is a member of the Child Helpline
International. Our Service Manager
(Remedial Service) shared our hotline
services at the Regional Consultation
Forum in Vietnam on 26-28 November
2013.

c. Our Development and Training Manager
attended the San Diego Child Protection
Conference on 28-31 January 2014.
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As | begin writing this report, four delegates from ACA are on our way back home &fter the 20th ISPCAN
International Congress (International Society for Prevention of Child Abuse and Neglect). The work of ACA in
child protection is very much commensurate with that of our international partners.

We have been advocating for a better child protection system in Hong Kong. For example, our efforts had
contributed to the implementation of the Sex Conviction Record Check and the standing Child Fatality Review
in Hong Kong. We have shared our experience on these achievements in the International Congress. However,
there is no complacency here as there is much room for improvement. We need to continue our effort to
work with different stakeholders. We also shared our other experience including the visitation programs for
the pregnant mothers and young children in difficult situations, our projects for the unattended children, sex-
trafficking as well as our treatment services. Our visitation programs have been built upon the strength of the
dedicated volunteers who rightly deserve our special recognition. We also received requests from overseas

partners to visit us to learn from ACA experience.

The Child Protection Institute was officially opened on 19 November 2013. This is an important milestone. The
objectives of the Institute are to provide a3 platform for professional training and development, a center to
coordinate child protection education programs for parents, children and the public. The Institute also aims
to facilitate data collection, research, as a resource center, to consolidate our valuable past experiences and
to advance advocacy work. | must thank our colleagues and friends for their advice and suppart. We are also
grateful to the team of able honorary consultants who volunteer their time and expertise helping to build up
a strong foundation for the Institute to advance child protection in Hong Kong. We shall continue to drive the

Institute to a higher ground.

Working in the child protection field requires a strong personal commitment and good mutual support among
team members. A service management plan was in place since the previous reporting year to provide induction
of new staff, ongoing support through mentorship, skill transfer, skill-mix enhancement, in-house and external
education and training. The training needs and career development of our staff are taken seriously by the
Executive Committee; as these complement the growth of ACA, increase its capacity to meet up with the
challenging service demands and mest importantly our children and families are in good hands and are better
served. We are seeing a stable and positive development here and shall continue our effort in this direction.

As | am about to complete this report, it is very disheartening to see the atrocities and the many adverse
situations in the Hong Kong community. We appeal to all parties concerned to safeguard the well-being of
our children, to listen to their voices and to discuss with them about the issues of safety, responsibilities and
possible consequence of any likely decision they adopt. We strongly reaffirm our mission to promote a caring
and non-violent environment for our children to grow and develop. Any form of violence is condemned. Lastly
| must thank all staff, various ACA Committee members, volunteers and friends for your continual support to

ACA. We look forward to a peaceful and non-violent society for all.
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The Against Child Abuse continued to receive support from the major funding bodies:
the Community Chest of Hong Kong, the Social Welfare Department and the Hang Kong
Jockey Club Charities Trust. We also received support from other funding scurces to

provide various services for children and families.

The total income for the year was HK$14,978,707, an increase of 16% compared to the total
income of HK$12,889,239 for the previous year. This was mainly due to the effort to raise
funds on our flag day and the increase of project funds. We raised HK$1,122,253 in total
on the flag day held in February 2014. A special vote of thanks must be given to all staff,

children, volunteers and supporters for their support to make the flag day a success.

The overall expenditure was HK$13,955,144, up by 17% from the previous year. This was due
to the launching of the Child Abuse Treatment Corner, a new project in the year and the

renovation work at the Child Protection Centre funded by the Lotteries Fund.

We have a surplus of HK$1,023,563 for the year. An amount of $700,000 has been
transferred to the Staff Cost Fund and $300,000 to the Development and Emergency Fund.

The total reserve is HK$14,308,370, which is made of the following: a general fund of
HK$1,726,479, specific funds of HK$3 990,229, and the property for the self-financing Child
Protection Centre in North Point valued at HK$8,591,662.

We shall continue making every effort to raise funds and explore new sources to sustain our
services with the aim of benefiting mare children and families to receive quality and timely

services,
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The Against Child Abuse Child Protection Centre Opening Ceremony was held on 19 November 2013, the
World Day for Prevention of Child Abuse. The Ceremony was officiated by Ms Carol Yip, JP, Director of
Social Welfare. We were glad to have the presence of many guests including heads of non-governmental
organizations, government officials, district council members and chairpersons of parent-teacher associations.

The launching of the Child Protection Institute in the past year marked a significant milestone in the
development of child protection work in Hong Kong. The Institute provides child protection training, parent
education and children groups. We were honoured to have a pool of experts from multi-disciplines to support
the cause as the Institute's honorary consultants.

We launched a two-year Child Abuse Treatment Corner to provide stress management groups for parents
with depressive symptoms, therapeutic groups for batterers to help physically abusive parents, and children
therapeutic groups to help abused children deal with negative emotions and express their emotions in
appropriate ways. We also set up a play therapy rocom in Chuk Yuen Centre to help children get in touch and
deal with their negative emotions in a secure environment through play therapy.
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To raise public awareness on stopping corporal punishment at home, we arganized a Child Protection Carnival
on the Sunday before the 30 April SpankOut Day. We continued to advocate for children's rights to be
respected as persons and have the same rights as adults. They should not be spanked and their voices should
be heard.

We held a sharing forum on “Listen to Children’s Vioice”. Our junior volunteers presented a video clip, a drama
and an interactive sharing forum to share their views and wishes to see that their parents do not fight with
each other and that their homes are free from viclence. The issue of internet safety was discussed and positive
parenting tips were shared.

We held two press conferences including the annual press conference to share the child abuse statistics,
trends and recommendations for child protection and the press conference to share services of the Child
Protection for New Arrival with Children aged 0-5 Project. Three parents shared their stories of change at the
press conferences to encourage parents who encountered similar situations in seeking help.

To encourage parents and children call the Parent-child Support Line and promote the important message of
child protection to the public, a series of promaotional activities were organized including radio broadeasting,

bus and tram shelter billboards, bus body, video broadcasting on Roadshow and multi-media channel, etc.

We submitted position papers to the Legislation Council to respond to the handling of sex related criminal
cases and the Second Report of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under the Convention on
the Rights of the Child. We alse responded to the Population Policy consultation to urge the government to

consider the possible impact on the life of children when formulating population policies.

Besides providing training to the related professionals locally, we also shared our experiences with the
professionals in mainland China. Our Director and a social worker were invited by the Oriental Agency for
Social Work in Shanghai to conduct a 3-day child protection training course for social workers, The content
included an overview on the global development of child protection work, identification and handling of
suspected child abuse cases, its prevention and treatment.

We continued to connect with the international child protection parties regarding various child protection
issues. We are a national partner of the International Society for the Prevention of Child Abuse and Neglect
and a member of the Child Helpline International. We shared our hotline services at the Regional Consultation
Forum in Vietnam in November 2013. To keep abreast of the international trend, we attended the 5an Diego
Child Protection Conference in January 2014.

The ACA Flag Day was successfully held on 22 February 2014 with 5,000 volunteers involved. My deepest
gratitude for the support of the donors, sponsars, collaborators and volunteers. We could not have achieved
so much without the selfless devotion of the Executive Committee members and the staff team. In the coming
years, we shall continue sustaining our service roles as a child protection agent, a therapist, a trainer and
an advocate, enhancing governance, developing the Child Protection Institute, consolidating and sharing
knowledge and partnership with multi-disciplines and sectors to create a safer place for our children.
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The Financial Review

Report Of The Executive Committee Members For
2013/2014

The Executive Committee Members have the pleasure in presenting their annual report and the audited

financial staternents of the Organisation for the year ended 31st March, 2014

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Organisation during the year were to work for the prevention of all forms of child

abuse and child neglect and to make remedial measures when they occurred.

Financial Affairs

The state of the Organisation’s affairs at 31st March, 2014 is set out in the statement of financial position on
page 24. The statement of income and expenditure and other comprehensive income for the year are set out
on pages 25 to 26.

Executive Committee Members

The Executive Committee Members during the year and up to the date of this report were as follows:-
Dr. Patrick Cheung

Mr. James Ng

Mr. Nicholas Jim

Dr. Chow Chun Bong

Dr. Patricia lp

Dr. Gladys Lam

Dr. Man Yuk Ching

Dr. Jessica Ho

Dr. Patrick lp

Mr. Kwok Ka Keung (Appointed on 2nd August, 2013)

In accordance with Article 42 and 43 of the Organisation's Articles of Association, one-third of the members of the

Committee, or if their number is not a multiple of three then the number nearest to one-third, shall retire by rotation but,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election,



Executive Committee Members (Cont'd)

At no time during the year was the Organisation a party to any arrangements to enable the Executive
Committee Members of the Organisation to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or

debentures of any other body corporate.

No contracts of significance to which the Organisation was a party and in which any Executive Committee

Members had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. S. Y. Yang & Company who have kindly consented to

serve as Honorary Auditors for the ensuing year.

On Behalf Of The Executive Commitiee

Fatrick Cheung (Dr.)
Chairperson

Hong Kang : 5 September 2014
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The Financial Review

Independent Honorary Auditors’ Report to The
Members of Against Child Abuse Limited
(Incorporated In Hong Kong With Limited Liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Against Child Abuse Limited on pages 24 to 40 which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31st March, 2014, and the statement of income and expenditure and
other comprehensive income, statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Executive Committee Members' Responsibilities For The Financial Statements

The Executive Committee Members are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give & true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reparting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
Executive Committee Members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ar error,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no cther purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to

whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.



Auditors’ Responsibility (Cont'd)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpase of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organisation’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasanableness of accounting estimates made by the Executive Committee Members, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the financial staterents.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Organisation’s affairs
as at 31st March, 2014 and of its surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

3. Y. Yang & Company
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong : & September 2014
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HTBGIR DL

The Financial Review

Statement of Financial Position as at 31" March 2014

Naote 2014
HEE
Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 8,591,662
8591662
Current Assets
Deposits 55,280
Accounts receivable 1,202,208
Prepayment 12744
Bank balance 5,378,994
Cash balance 9,500
8885726
Less : Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 58,809
Receipt in advance 890,209
_9B0T8
Net Current Assets 5,716,708
Net Assets 14,308,370
Represented by :
General fund b 1,726,479
Specific funds 7 3,990,229
Capital reserve 8 8,591,662
Total Funds And Reserve 14,308,370

Approved and authorised for issue by the Committee of Executive Members on 5 September 2014

Patrick Cheung (Dr) James Ng
Director Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

2013
HK3

8,601,414
8,601,414

46,080
362,404
81,094
4,711,808
8,500
5,212,886

83,810
445,683
529,493

13,284,807

1,617,478
3,065,915
8,601,414

13,284,807
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The Financial Review

Statement of Income and Expendtture and Other Comprehensive
Income for The Year Ended 31> March, 2014

Income
The Community Chest

Social Welfare Department

- Lump sum grant

- Subvention for rent and rates

- F&E & minor works block grant

The HK Jockey Club Charities Trust
- General

Flag day

Froject income
Programme fees

Donation
- For general purposes

Interest income

Membership fee
Miscellaneous income

Total Income

MNote

10

11

5929100

1,499,616
27950
23,000
1,024,037
1122253
4,488 447
362,702
457,191
6,613

9,089
28,709

14,978,707

2013
HKE

6,315,270

1,419,494
27.950
21,000

1,053,100
716,145
2,343,071
353,756
606,720
44

6,805
25,884

12,889,239
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The Financial Review

Statement of Income and Expenditure and Other

Comprehensive Income for The Year Ended 31 March, 2014

Expenditure
Salaries and allowances

Administration

Rent and rates

Transportation

Public education programmes
Flag day

Project expenditure

Repair and maintenance

Fitting out and equipment
General
SWD Block Grant

Staff training and development
Grant and subsidy for clients
Grant and subsidy for activities
Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Total Expenditure

Total Surplus Before Transfer

To Reserves
Transfers from/(ta) reserves ;

Development & Emergency Fund

Staff Cost Fund

Financial Assistance Program
Protection of Angels Fund
Capital Reserve

Social Welfare Development Fund Phase |
Social Welfare Development Fund Phase |l
Social Welfare Department Provident

Fund Surplus Fund
Project for Ethnic minorities

Surplus for the year

Maota

10
13

24
HKS

7436,612

546,696
425,062
101,145
485,123
103,992
4,563,409
141,381

46,044
23,000

11,023
1,850

60,055
9,752

13,955,144

1,023,563

(267 411)
(700,000}
1,850

9,752
159,183
(126,810)

(1,126)
10,000

109,001

2013
HKE

7,080,652

&70.986
386,492
108,639
684,234
i st
2,618,252
95,040

4,791
21,000

33,35
10,017
3,650
106,805
9752

11,905,238

984,001

(300,000)
60,633
10,017
3,650
9,752
275,167

1,043,220
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Statement of Cash Flows

Surplus from operating activities

Depreciation
Interest received

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in deposit

(Increase)/Decrease in accounts receivable

Decrease/ (Increase)in prepayment

Decrease in accounts payable

Increase/(Decrease) in receipt in advance
Net cash generated from operating activities

Investing activities

Interest received

Net cash generated from investing activities

Financing activities
Repayment of borrowings

Net cash used in investing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1% April

Cash and cash equivalents at 31" March

Analysis of balance of cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank
Cash in hand

for The Year Ended 31 March, 2014

2014 2013

HKS HKS
1,023,563 984,001
9,752 9,752
(6,613) (44)
1,026,702 993,709
(6,200) 150
(839,804) 232,444
61,350 (30,356)
(25,001) (164,918)
444,526 (417,520)
661,573 761,509
6,613 44
L Oy L
- (2,549947)
-z (2549947)
668186  (1,788,394)
4,720,308 6,508,702
5,388,494 4,720,308
5,378,994 4,711,808
2500 8,500

5,388,494

4,720,308
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Notes to The Financial Statements

1) GENERAL INFORMATION

The Organisation is a limited by guarantee company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its registered
office is 107-108, Wai Yuen House, Chuk Yuen (North) Estate, Wong Tai Sin, Kowloon. The principal activities
of the Organisation were to work for the prevention of all forms of child abuse and child neglect and to make

remedial measures when they occurred,

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs) which collective term includes all applicable individusl Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

2) AportioNn Or New Anp Revisen Honeg Kong Financiar ReporTiNG
STANDARDS

The following new and revised HKFRS are adopted for the first time in current accounting year:

Amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements - Presentation of items of other comprehensive
income

Upon the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the Organisation's ‘statement of comprehensive income
and expenditure’ is renamed as the 'statement of income and expenditure and other comprehensive
income’. Furthermare, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other comprehensive income are grouped into two
categories : (3) itemns that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendment to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or
loss, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.

The Organisation has not early applied any new and revised HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the current
accounting year.



3) SIGNIFICANT AccouNTING PoLiciES

a)

Basis of Preparation

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis,
except for fair value measurement of certain financial assets.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires committee members to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Recognition of Income and Expenditure

Income is recognised upon cash received (other than the accounts receivable). Expenditure is
recognised when it is incurred.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of a property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any direct costs
of bringing the property, plant and equipment to its working condition and location. Ongoing repair

and maintenance expenses are charged to the income and expenditure statement.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is depreciated over the unexpired of lease terms of
land and building.

Fitting out and equipment costs are written off to the statement of comprehensive income and

expenditure in the year of purchases.
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Notes to The Financial Statements

3) SteNIFICANT AccouNTING Poticies (CoNTD)

d) Financial Instruments

The Organisation classifies its financial assets in the following categories, loans and receivables,
and cash and cash equivalents. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Executive Committee determines the classification of the financial assets at
initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date. Purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade day - the date on which the Organization commits to purchase
or sell the assets. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Organisation has transferred substantially

all risks and rewards of ownership.

I) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payment that are
not quoted in an active market. They are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest methad
and are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the

reporting period where these are classified as non-current assets.

i} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term

highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less,

The Organisation assesses at each reporting period ended whether there is objective evidence that
financial assets or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-
for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial assets previously recognised in the
Organisation's statement of income and expenditure - is removed from equity and recognised in the
Organisation's statement of income and expenditure account. Impairment losses recognised in the
Organisation's statement of income and expenditure on equity instruments are not reversed through
the Organisation's statement of income and expenditure.



3) SigniFicaNT AccounTing Poticies (CoNTD)

e) Staff Cost

i) Mandatory provident fund scheme

Employer's contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme are charged to the Organisation’s

statement of income and expenditure for the year.

i) Short-term employee benefit

Salaries, bonuses, paid annual leave are recognised in the year in which the associated services are

rendered by employees.

f) Operating Lease

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with the leasing

company are accounted for as operating leases. Payments made under operating lease are charged to

the Organisation's statement of income and expenditure account on a straight-line basis over the lease

period.

4) Starr CosT

2014

HKS

Salaries and allowances 7436,612
Staff training and development 11,023
7447635

2013

HKS
7,080,652
33351

/114,003

El
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5) ProPERTY, PLANT AND EqQUIPMENT

Cost

Balance as at 1/4/2012,31/3/2013 & 31/3/2014

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1/4/2012

Charge for the year

Balance as at 31/3/2013

Balance as at 1/4/2013
Charge for the year
Balance as at 31/3/2014

Net Book Value
At 31/3/2014

At 31/3/2013

6) GENERAL FUND

Balance brought forward

Transfer from income and expenditure statement

Balance carried forward

Notes to The Financial Statements

Land And Building In Hong Kong

Under Long-Term Lease

HKS

8,630,670

2014 2013
HK$S HK$
1,617,478 574,258
109,001 1,043,220

1,726,479 1,417,478



7) Seecieic Funp

Balance Balance

As At Met As At

1/4/2013 Movement 31/3/2014

HKS HKS HK$

Development & Emergency Fund (a) 1,728,728 267,411 1.996,139
Statf Cost Fund (b) 807,649 700,000 1,507,649
Project for Ethnic Minorities (c) 10,000 (10,000) :
Social Welfare Development Fund Phase | (c) & 15 156,183 {159,183 -
Social Welfare Development Fund Phase || {c)&15 - 126,810 126,810
Protection of Angels Fund (d) 45,501 = 45,501
Egﬁsl Welfare Department Provident Fund Surplus (@) 307,338 1126 308,464
Financial Assistance Program {f 7514 (1,850) 5,666
3,065,215 924,314 3990,229

a) Development & Emergency Fund

Allow the agency to use the fund for emergency purposes and to develop and implement projects not

funded by major funding bodies.

b) Staff Cost Fund

To cover staff salary and honorarium in respect of services and functions not funded by major funding
bodies.

c) Project Funds

Project funds specifically funded by some funding bodies.

d) Protection of Angels Fund

To subsidise activities/training courses for children and to provide assistance to children in need.

e) Social Welfare Department Provident Fund Surplus Fund

The fund represented overpayment of providerit fund subvention from Social Welfare Department in

prior years.

f) Financial Assistance Program

To provide assistance to children with family financial problem.
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Notes to The Financial Statements
8) CarrtaL RESERVE

2014 2013

HKS HKS
Balance brought forward 8,601,414 B.611,166
Transfer to general and specific fund (2752) (9.752)
Balance carried forward _ j,= 91,662 _ 8601414

9) MoveMENT oF THE F & E ReEpLENISHMENT AND MinoR Works BLock GrRANT

RESERVE

2014 2013
HK$ HKS
Balance brought forward - =
Add : Block grant received during the year 23,000 21,000
23,000 21,000

Less : Expenditure during the year
Minor Work Projects {2,400) (13,500)
Furniture and Equipment (20,606) (7.500)

(6)

Contribution from NGO to cover the deficit & -

Balance carried forward

Capital Commitments

As at 31% March, 2014, the outstanding commitments in respect of F & E Replenishment and Mirror Works
Grant as follows:-

HKS
Contracted for but not provided in the financial statement -
Authorised but not contracted for -
10) FLag Day
The net proceeds of the flag day held on 22nd February, 2014 were used for:-

HKS$
a) Staff cost and administrative cost 816,698
b) Mass programs and public education programs 201,563

1,018,261



1) ProjecT INcomE

“Joyful Heart" - Child Development Project
- Operation Santa Claus 2010

Tuen Mun Summer Youth Program
- Tuen Mun District Youth Programme Committee

Child Protection Carnival Cum Tuen Mun Centre Open Day
- On Ting Estate Estate Management Advisory Committee

Child Protection Carnival Cum Tuen Mun Centre Open Day
- Hong Kong Housing Authority

Social Welfare Development Fund Phase |
- Lotteries Fund

Social Welfare Development Fund Phase I
- Lotteries Fund

A Child Friendly City
- Sedan Chair Charities Fund

Be A Positive Parent
- Sedan Chair Charities Fund

Parent-child Support Line : Extension of ACA Hotline Service
- Save The Children Hong Kong Ltd.

Children Protection Web Perform
- Save The Children Hong Kong Ltd,

Chuk Yuen Family Corner
- Zonta Club of Hong Kong Il Foundation Limited

Love Your Child - Start with Sex Education
- American Women's Association of Hong Kong

2014 2013
HKS HKS
..
__ 508 _ __ 7360
. L A =
_____ oo 29869
_____ 2 _ _ 149600
... N A
_____ ...
... R ~
_____ - __ e
_____ - jaan
__ 120255 100,000
24,000 .
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Notes to The Financial Statements

1) Project Income (Cont'D)
Sweet Home - Happy Kids
- American Women's Association of Hong Kong

Parent-child Support Line and Online Counseling
- Save The Children Hong Kong Ltd.

Hotline and Parent-child Support Line Service
- 5ave The Children Hong Kong Ltd.

Child Abuse Treatment Corner
- Fu Tak lam Foundation Ltd.

"BRERE-dEHE, FEE
- Hong Kong Housing Authority

Child Protection Home Visitation Project for New Arrivals
- The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust

Fitting-out Work, Furniture & Equipment
- Lotteries Fund

Tota

12) Executive CoMmmITTEE MEMBERS REMUNERATION

2014 2013

HK$ HKS

_____ . 32000

__ W30 dseEn
??EJ.'!EG_ -
801,610 -

- 32,096

857,678 663,346

_ 1299997 __ 63780
4,488,447 2,343,071

Executive Committee Members' remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 78 of Schedule 11 of the Companies

Ordinance is as follows :-

Fee
Other emoluments

2014 2013
HK$ HKS$
807,701 805,443
807,701 805,463



13) ProjecT EXPENDITURE

Development & Emergency Fund

Social Welfare Development Fund Phase |

Social Welfare Development Fund Phase ||

“Joyful Heart" Child Development Project

Child Protection Carnival Cum Tuen Mun Centre Open Day

Child Protection Web Platform

Parent-child Support Line : Extension of ACA Hotline Service

Chuk Yuen Family Corner

A Child Friendly City

Love Your Child - Start with Sex Education

Sweet Home - Happy Kids

Child Protection Home Visitation Project for New Arrivals

Parent-child Support Line and Online Counseling

Hotline and Parent-child Suppaort Line Service
BERE-HBHR, BEE

Tuen Mun Summer Youth Program

Fitting-out Works, Furniture & Equipment

Child Abuse Treatment Corner

Be A Positive Parent

Project for Ethnic Minorities

2014 2013
HKS HKS$
32,589 -
159,185 424,781
42,857
43,575 386,008
34,319 29,869
- 72,277
- 259,843
120,255 100,000
- 60,000
24,000 -
- 32,000
857,678 663,346
313,108 486,892
770,150 -
- 32,096
5,086 7,360
1,299,997 63,780
801,410 £
49,000 5
10,000
4,563,409 2,618,252

i
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Notes to The Financial Statements

14) SurrLus For THE YEAR

Note 2014 2013
HKS HKS
General fund 6 109,001 1,043,220
Specific fund £ 924,314 (49,467)
Capital reserve 8 (9,752) (9,752)
1,023,563 984,001
15) Use ofF THE Social WeLEaRE DeveLopMENT Funp (SWDF) FUNDED BY
LorTERIES FUND
SWDF Phase |
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
|, Balance of SWDF brought forward (a): 159,183 434,350
Il. Allocation from SWDF during the year (b): . 149,600
III. Interest received (c): 2 14
IV. Expenditure under SWDF during the year (d): (152,185) (424,781)
Balance carried forward to the next financial year
e=@+b+d- - 159183
SWDF Phase ||
2014 2013
HK$ HKS
|, Balance of SWDF brought forward (a): -
Il. Allocation from SWDF during the year (b): 169,660
. Interest received (c): 7
IV. Expenditure under SWDF during the year (d): (42,857)
Balance carried forward to the next financial year
(e) ={a) + (b) + (c) - (d) 126,810 -



16) OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Organisation leases its office and properties under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties
are negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Organisation had total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating lease falling due as follows

2014 2013
HKS HK$
Within one year 126,000 58,934
In the second to fifth year 68,758 -
oo JT58 58534

17) Financiar InstrumenTs By CaTEGORY
2014 2013
Loan and Loan and
receivable receivable
HKS HK$

Financial assets:

Accounts receivable 1,202,208 362,404
Prepayment 19744 81,094
Bank balance 5,378,994 4,711,808
Cash balance 2,500 8,500

6,610,444 5163,806

Financial liabilities at amartised cost: 2014 2013
HK$ HK$

Accounts payable 58,809 83.810
Receipt in advance 890,209 445,683
Q49018 529493
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Notes to The Financial Statements

18) FivanciaL Risk MANAGEMENT

a) Credit Risk

The Organisation has no significant concentration of credit risks. There is no credit terms for account

receivables.

b) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as they fall

due.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional needs,
the Organisation maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in liquid

financial markets and instruments.

The Organisation employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the
amount of cash and required and monitoring the working capital of the Organisation to ensure that all

liabilities due and known funding requirements can be met.

c) Market Risk

The Organisation has no significant concentration of interest rate, currency and equity price risks.

d) Fair Value

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair value as at 31st
March, 2013 and 2014.
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We have given a total of 173 media interviews in
the year under review. We submitted a position
paper to the government in response to the
Population Policy consultation and two position
papers to the Legislative Council responding to
the Second Report of the Hong Kong Special
Administration Region under the Convention on
the Rights of the Child and the handling of sex
related crimes. We also advocated for improving
child protection palicies and legislation to prevent
child maltreatment.

We attended 23 related committee meetings
to suggest views for better child protection
policies especially in primary prevention and the
collaboration of multi-disciplines.

Two press canferences were held including the
annual press conference to share the trends
and characteristics of child abuse and the press
conference to share about services for the new
arrivals with children aged 0-5.

We organized a sharing forum to enable children
to vaice their views on cyber safety, their

expectations on the parents and a harmonious
family. We also organized a SpankQut Day
carnival to raise public awareness on the need
to stop corporal punishment on children which
not anly builds a good parent-child relationship,
but also enhances children’s self image and
esteem as they would feel secure to explore and
express themselves in an accepting and loving

environment.

We continued to be a member of the Alliance for
Children Commission. We met with the chair and
a member of the UN Committee on the Rights
of the Child when they were in Hong Kong to
share about the local situation regarding child
protection.

It was encourging to S8e our Service users
and volunteers ready and willing to share their
stories of change. They also joined us to urge
the government to invest in children as they saw
the importance of primary prevention which in
the long run would indeed save resources and

strengthen family resilience.
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ACA provides hotline and drop-in services for
the public and professionals to report or consult
suspected child abuse and child management
cases. Phone in counselling services on case
consultation and enquiries on child management,
children's emotional problems, family problems
and handling procedures of child abuse cases
are also available. At hotline level, social workers
collect information of the suspected abuse and
follow up services such as investigation, home visit
or referral are arranged in accordance with the

needs of the children and families.

With the support from Save the Children Hong
Kong, the hotline service could be extended to

¢pm, Mondays to Fridays. Workers work with

the caller to elicit information necessary for
counselling or providing outreach service and
follow up. In the year under review, reported cases
increased by 32% from 1,093 cases in the previous

yearto 1,445 cases,

Nature of reports and enquires

Of the 1,445 cases handled at the hotline and
drop-in level, 409 (28%) were on suspected child
abuse, 456 (32%) on child management problems,
25 (2%) on other problems such as family viclence,
marital problems and so on. The remaining 555
(38%) were about personal problems or enguiry of

services.
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Of the 409 suspected abuse cases, 194 cases
(47%) were on physical abuse, which ranked the
highest in number. The second highest was sexual
abuse, 75 cases (18%); followed by neglect, 64
cases (16%); muliiple abuse, 47 cases (12%) and
psychological abuse, 29 cases (7%) (Chart 1). The
number of physical abuse cases is higher than the
other forms of abuse cases as bruises or marks left
on the child's body are easy to identify and define.
Despite the increase of reported physical abuse
cases compared with the previous year, we believe
that many cases might have gone unreported.
Other forms of abuse, like neglect, sexual
and psychological abuse, are more difficult to
identify. More effort should be made to enhance
awareness in child protection. We hope that the
Government, non-governmental organisations and
community associations could also take an active

role in promoting child protection.

Referrers

Of the 1,445 reported cases, about half, 708 (49%),
were reported by family members. Of the 708
family members, 480 (68%) were children's mother,
129 (18%) were relatives/friends, 70 (10%) were
children's father and 29 (4%) were the abused
children themselves. There were 21 (2%) abusers
who reported the cases themselves and sought
support from ACA. Among the 1,445 reported
cases, the second largest group of referrers was
the public and neighbours, who reported 422
(29%) cases for services, followed by 272 (18%)
professionals and 22 (2%) media who played an
important role in protecting children at risk of
abuse (Chart 2).

Of the 1,445 referrals, 836 (58%) referrers knew
about our hotline number through our other
services, 373 (26%) through mass media, 72 (5%)
through friends/neighbours, 36(3%) through
telephone companies and others through schools
(29), non-governmental organisation (28), social
workers (15) , Social Welfare Department (14),
family members (4), hospital/ medical officer (4},
police (3), Legal Aid (2), parents (1), psychologist/
psychiatrist (1) and District Officer (1). Some callers
did not reveal their identity (25) (Chart 3). Referrers
were concerned about children's safety and made
effort to refer cases to ACA. However, we believe
that some people are hesitate about referring
because they are worried about their suspicions,
whether their identity will be revealed or whether
their concerns will be taken seriously. About these
worries, we wish to emphasize that ACA keeps
informants’ identity confidential and try to conduct
risk assessment to decide on which appropriate
follow-up service is needed for the reported
families.

Residence of Children Involved

There were 1,221 children involved in the 1,445
reported cases. The top five districts were
Wong Tai Sin, 172 (14%); Tuen Mun, 148 (12%);
Kwun Tong, 118 (10%), Sham Shui Po, 107 (9%)
and Yuen Long/Tin Shui Wai, 61 (5%) (Chart 4).
Resources in preventing child abuse should be
allocated to these needy districts by conducting
talks, workshops and community education
programmes. ACA has been providing volunteer
home visitation services to needy families in these
districts, such as Tuen Mun, Wong Tai Sin, Kwun
Tong and Sham Shui Po, to help them secure
social support from the community.
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Age of children

Of the 1,221 children invalved in the 1,445 cases,
152 (12%) were 0 to 2 years old, 250 (20%) were
from 3 to 5, 251 (21%) from 6 to 8, 228 {19%) from
9 ta 11, 155 (13%) from 12 to 14, and 64 (5%) from
15 to 17 (Chart 5). The figure indicated that age
group 3 to 11 was the maost vulnerable group.
Parents may have concerns disciplining their pre-
school age children because they are often active
and curious about the environment. Children
usually learn from concrete experience and could
develop their potential through learning. Parents
with children studying at primary schools also
face much pressure in study supervision. Parents
should be patient and tolerant with children's
behaviours. They need to provide an emationally

secured environment ta their children.

Suspected abusers

A majority of the 465 suspected abusers involved
in the 1,445 reported cases were family members.
By category, these suspected abusers included
149 (32%) mothers, 78(17%) fathers, 76 (156%)
both parents, 10 (2%) grandmothers, 7 (2%)
grandfathers, 7 (2%) brothers, 3 step-fathers and
1 step-mother. Further, 34 (7%) were teachers, 40
(9%) were relatives, friends or schoolmates, 13 (3%)
were caregivers, nine (2%) were tutors, nine (2%)
were strangers, one was the mother’s boyfriend,
one was the grandfather’s girlfriend and one was a
neighbour (Chart &).

Case previously known to other agencies

Of the 1,445 reported cases, 26/ cases were
previously handled by other agencies with 20
invalving more than one party: 17 cases handled
by two agencies and 3 cases involved three
agencies. ACA played an important rale in

communicating with other agencies in order to
facilitate appropriate services. Multidisciplinary
collaboration to handle child abuse cases resulted
in more information collected for case assessment
and timely provision of necessary services to

children.

Services rendered

ACA rendered a total of 2,358 services to the
cases. Services include 1,661 phone contacts, 327
collateral phone contacts, 135 investigations, 109
referrals, 104 office interviews and 20 letters to

service users{Chart 7).

Some cases had been known to and handled by
other agencies at the hotline level. We referred
these cases to the relevant agencies for further
follow-up services. For cases without other
agencies’ involvement, we would refer them to
government departments if we were unable to
provide instant investigations and outreaching
visits because of manpower restraint. Out of
the 109 referrals, 34 {31%) cases were referred
to Family and Child Protective Services Units
(FCPSUs) of Social Welfare Department, 32 (30%)
cases to Integrated Family Services Centres (IFSCs)
of Social Welfare Department, 23 (21%) to IFSCs of
non-governmental organisations and the rest were
referred to other non-governmental organisations,
medical secial work services, school social work
services, clinical psychology and psychiatric
services (Chart 8).
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Having collected information at hotline and
drop-in service, our social workers will start
their outreach service. They will work in pairs to
investigate suspected abuse cases. A thorough
assessment of family members, the suspected
abuser and the abused child will be conducted to
assess the risk and provide necessary intervention.
Interviews are usually conducted separately to
obtain objective information. Social workers will
explore risk factors, family relationship, abusers'
attitude to the abused, stressors and strengths
of family support, so as to assess the degree of

safety for the child.

For cases with physical injuries, the child may
have to be taken to a public hospital for medical
examination and the police may have to be
involved. Less serious cases may require early

intervention to prevent further abuse.

In the year under review, 135 investigations were
conducted, with 42 cases (31%) defined as abuse,
31 cases (23%) as child management at risk and
59 cases (44%) as child care and management
problem. Of the 42 abuse cases, 26 (62%) were
physical abuse, nine (21%) were neglect, four (10%)
were sexual abuse, two (5%) were psychological
abuse and cne (2%) was multiple abuse (Chart 9).
A majority of the investigated cases, such as those
connected with child management at risk and child
care and management problem, had potential risk
of abuse. Early intervention was therefore required
which we had provided and intervened to achieve

the goal of prevention.

At the investigation level, our social workers
provided a wide range of follow up services for
the reporting families. Of the 135 investigations
conducted, 1,712 services were provided, including
625 phone contacts, 494 collateral contacts, 264
hame visits, 161 office interviews, 52 letters, 43
referrals, 34 collateral visits, 27 collateral interviews
and 10 multidisciplinary case conferences (Chart
10).

Of the 43 referrals, 10 cases (23%) were referred
to Integrated Family Services Centre (IFSC) of
Social Welfare Department (SWD), 10 (23%) to
Family and Child Protective Services Unit of SWD,
9 (21%) to non-government organisations, 3 (7%)
to IFSCs of non- government organisations, 3 (7%)
to medical social service units, 2 (5%) to Education
Bureau, 2 (5%) to school social work services,
and the remaining 4 cases (9%) were reterred
to Integrated Community Centre for Mental
Wellness, Central Referral System for Residential
Child Care Services, counselling service of church
and parenting group of our Tuen Mun Centre
(Chart 11).

After the investigations, 43 cases required follow
up services - 27 cases were referred to counselling
service, seven required financial and tangible
assistance, four required psychiatric service,
one required clinical psycholagical service, one
needed day care service, one required small group
home service, one required school placement and
one needed follow-up of school nen-attendance
(Chart 12).
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After investigation, we provide follow-up casework
counseling service to some cases with the family's
consent. In the year under review, we handled
a total of 103 cases. Among these cases, 33
(32%) were abuse cases, 47 (46%) were child
management at risk cases and 23 (22%) were child
management cases,

Of the 33 abuse cases, 15 (46%) were physical
abuse, six(18%) were multiple abuse, five (15%)
were neglect, four (12%) were sexual abuse and
three (9%) were psychological abuse. Among
the six multiple abuse cases, three cases were
physical abuse and psychological abuse, one case
was physical abuse and neglect, one case was
physical abuse and sexual abuse and one case was
psychological abuse and sexual abuse{ Chart 13).



Among the 111 children involved in the 103 cases,
63 (57%) were living with both parents, 34 (30%)
living with the mother, six (5%) living with the
tather, three (3%) living with grandparents, three
(3%) living in institution / children’s home and two
(2%) living with relatives (Chart 14).

Qur case woarkers provided service on 2,364
occasions to the 103 cases, including 1,057 direct
phone contacts, 429 office interviews, 358 home
visits, 347 collateral phone contacts, 62 referrals, 43
letters, 38 collateral visits, 18 financial assistance,
13 collateral meetings and one multidisciplinary

child abuse case conference (Chart 15).

Qutreaching casework service was rendered to
engage those family members wha refused to seek
help at first. Our social workers worked through
their resistance, providing emotional and practical
support through counseling and connecting
them to community resources if appropriate.
The parents/ carers gained knowledge and
skills of positive parenting to help rebuild family
relationships. Our social warkers monitored the
abusive situation and protected children from
further abuse. A majority of the parents/ guardians
stopped using violent means to manage children’s
behaviour after our intervention. Among the 103
cases handled, we identified the following trends

and patterns.

1. Families with financial stress (40 cases,
39%)
More than one-third of the cases were
low-income families or families receiving
Comprehensive Social Security Assistance
(CS5A), These families encountered

financial hardships and could only meet

the basic needs of their children, such as
food, clothing and other basic necessities.
The financial hardship affected children's
social development as they were deprived
of resources to attend social activities and
interest classes. Such social stimulation
and exposure are important to child
development. We need to mobilize
resources from the community to support
families in need. In the year under review,
we applied for funds, like cash allowance,
book coupons and special fund for the
underprivileged children to attend social
activities and interest classes, with an aim to

broaden their harizon.

Besides, obtaining extra resources to
support childcare, some parents worked
part time to ease their financial stress.
Their childcare arrangement is of our
concern, We need to monitor the families
closely, particularly in the weekends and
school holiday, and we may make referrals
to community childcare services, such
as Neighborhood Child Care Support
Scheme and tutorials organised by non-
governmental organisations, so that their
children would not be left unattended.

Single parent families (34 cases, 33%)

Many single parent families are recipients
of CSSA as they need to take care of their
children, especially those in young ages;
therefore they are unable to work. Without
spouse support, they are stressful handling
different issues of their children, including
daily routines, behavioral discipline and

school work. Our social workers provided



counseling service to enhance their
childcare capacity and parenting function.
We encouraged these single parents to
join social activities and various parent
groups to expand their social network in the
community. Thus they could have mutual

and emotional support as needed.

Children with special educational needs
(31 cases, 30%)

Children with special educational needs,
such as Attention Deficit and Hyperactivity
Disorder (ADHD}, Speech Delay, Dyslexia
and Autistic Spectrum Disorder have
difficulties adjusting to social and school
life. They are likely to be bullied by peers
and are concerns by teachers. Parents found
it stressful handling school’s complaints
about their children's conduct and study.
Therefore, these parents warranted
extra attention and empowerment from
social workers to accept their children’s
uniqueness, strength and to be patient
to work with their children through their
childhood. They also need community
rehabilitation and medical resources
to ensure their children receive early
identification, treatment and special training

at an early stage of their development.

Parents with depression or psychiatric
problem (22 cases, 21%)

Parents encountered different forms of life
stresses, such as unemployment, financial
problems, childcare problems and child

disciplinary difficulties. Some parents

were diagnosed to have depression and
anxiety disorders and required psychiatric
follow-up and medical treatment. However,
they also needed much attention from
the caseworkers to enhance their insight
and acceptance of their condition, and
adhering to medication. In some cases,
the caseworkers needed to communicate
and work with their psychiatrists to identify
ways to improve the situation. Through
counseling service, we hope to motivate
them to attend medical service regularly to

help with their symptoms.

5.  Marital problems (19 cases, 18%)
Parents with martial problems have stress
that compromises parenting partnership.
Their children might show emotienal and
behavioral problems witnessing conflicts
or even battering between their parents.
Children’s performance may be a focus
in the "battlefield” between the parents,
negatively affecting the children’s emotion
and self-worth. Caseworkers needed to pay
extra effort in marital counselling, educating
parents the effective ways of communication
and arousing the awareness of their marital

problem affecting the children’s emotions.

Our case workers provided counseling and
intensive follow-up services to help these families
especially those facing complex problems. We
tried to help them work through the difficulties to
prevent child abuse and to protect children from

harm.
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Altogether, 11 multidisciplinary case conferences
(MDCC) were held. Seven were established as
abuse cases: three neglect, two physical abuse,
one physical abuse with high risk of neglect and
one physical abuse with high risk of psychological
abuse. Of the other four cases which were not
established as abuse, two cases were high risk of
physical abuse, one case was defined as suspicious
case of sexual abuse and one was not defined as

abuse,

Four to ten professionals were involved in every
MDCC. Police were involved in five cases and one
Care or Protection Order was recommended.
Emergency small group home service was

arranged for four children.

All parents were invited to attend the MDCC,
Twelve parents attended in 9 af the 11 MDCCs
after the initial welfare plan was formulated.
Parents were informed of the case nature and their
children’s welfare plans. They had opportunity
to share their views and concerns about the
welfare recommendation. Family participation
could facilitate family member involvement and
cooperation in the follow up plan. After the
case conference, 11 family cases were followed
up by the Family and Child Protective Service
Units of Social Welfare Department, including a
non-abusive case with service need on custody

arrangement.
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Child Abuse Treatment Corner was sponsored
by the Fu Tak lam Foundation Limited. This
two-year project started in April 2013. It aimed
at reducing stress and anxiety of parents with
depressive features or depression, helping
parents to adopt positive parenting and stopping
abusive behaviours, preventing the occurrence
or reoccurrence of child abuse, increasing self-
esteem and tackling negative emotions of abused

children and enhancing parent-child relationship.

Target families

The project focused on serving parents with
depressive features or depression, parents
adopting corporal punishment and children aged

six to twelve with emotional problems.

Work of the Project

This year, we organised stress management
group for parents with depressive features or
depression, batterer intervention therapeutic
group for batterers of child physical abuse,
children therapeutic group for abused children,

educational talks for parents and family outings.

We have recruited 49 parents and 28 children
since the inception of the project in April 2013.
The stress management group for parents with

depressive features or depression aims at helping

the parents realize the significance of managing
their own emotion, and enhancing the awareness
of irrational beliefs, negative emotions and
unhealthy daily living. The batterer intervention
therapeutic group for batterers of child physical
abuse helps the parents to manage their children
in non-viclent and positive ways. The children
therapeutic group for abused children provides a
child-friendly environment to learn trust and self-
confidence. The group encourages the children to
express their emotions in positive and appropriate

ways.

We orangised parent talks between January
and March 2014 in order to consolidate parents’
knowledge and skills in adopting emotion
coaching. These talks aimed at enhancing the
parents’ positive attitude and communication skills

with their children.

In addition, we orangised three parent-child
outings for 79 parents and 78 children. Through
indoor mass programmes, touring around the
Plover Cove Reservoir, hiking along the Tai Mei
Tuk trails and visiting the main theme park, not
only were the parent-child relationships enhanced
among the families, all participating family
members had the chance to enjoy a wonderful

weekend together.
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The Against Child Abuse (ACA) Child Proteclion
Centre Opening Ceremony was held on 19
November 2013, the “Weorld Day for Prevention
of Child Abuse” . The Opening Ceremony was
officiated by Ms Carol Yip. JP, Direclor of Social
Welfare, Dr Patrick Cheung, Chairperson of
ACA and Dr Jessica Ho, Director of ACA. We
were glad to have the presence of other guesls
including Heads of NGOs, Governmenl Officers,
District Council Members, chairpersons of

parent-teacher associations and volunteers.

We were honored to have many experienced
experts from different multi-disciplinary
professionals to be our Honorary Consultant
af the Child Protection Instilute. They provide
valuable advice to the development of the
Institute,

We have invited distinguished speakers to
speak on the different topics of child protection
and positive parenting after the opening
caremony. We also held workshaps for children
to enhance their potential and creativity and
express emotiens through experiential arts.
Most participants gave posilive feedback to

our ceurses and workshops. In Tuture, we shall

continue to provide child protection fralning,
parent education and children therapeutic

groups.

Child Protection Institute of Child Protection
Centre aims at further strengthening ACA' s
training and advocacy roles by Involving
different stakeholders: professionals, parents
and children, conducting mere in-depth child
protection work and educalion for those looking
for such Informalion. We provide lraining,
caertificate courses, workshops and input on
various areas of child protection, child rights,
positive parenting, child safely, prevention
of child sexual abuse, child mental health,
counseling and treatment, child protection
legislation, and the like. We have also set up
a resource corner o provide child protection
information for service users and the public to

use as reference.
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SpankQut Day cum Chuk Yuen Centre Open Day
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To support the message of the SpankOut Day,
Chuk Yuen Cenire organised the SpankOut
Day Carnival on 28 April with the aim of epding
corporal punishment and having harmonious
families in the community. Funding support came

from the Wong Tai Sin District Council.

We were honored to have the representatives
from Wong Tai Sin District Council, Social
Welfare Department, Home Affairs Department
and Federation of Parent-teacher Associations
(Wongtaisin Ltd.) to attend the event. We hope
parents will use positive parenting skills and put an

end to violent parenting practices in families.
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Child Protection Home Visitation Project for

New Arrivals
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With the funding support of the Hong Kong
Jockey Club Charities Trust, Child Protection
Home Visitation Project for New Arrivals
commenced on 1 June 2012. The project aims
to serve cross border or new arrival families with
children aged 0 to 5 in Sham Shul Po and Kwun
Tong districts. We provide these families with
social support through our volunteers, information
on child care and community resources in order
to facilitate a better inclusion and adjustment in

Hong Kong.

The newly arrived families faced difficulties in
child disciplining. The parents were worried about
their children's education. Their education level
was Form 3 or below and some had children
with special education needs (SEN). Parents had
difficulties helping their children’s homework
and learning. Moreover, they lacked knowledge
of community resources in their districts, such as
financial assistance, child-care centres, integrated
family and medical services. Most of them had

difficulties in adapting to their living in Hong Kong.

To help our volunteers of the Project perform
their tasks more effectively, we provided a series
of volunteer training including understanding
of new arrival families, home safety, risk
management, positive parenting and child’s
emotion management. Volunteers were equipped
with the knowledge of the needs of the new arrival
families, understanding the developmental stage
of children up to five years old and skills of home
visitation. We provided service for 100 new arrival

tamilies in the past year,

Apart from home visitation, we also held various
parent-child activities such as making rice
dumplings, Christmas Party, English learning fun
day and family day trip. The families expressed
that they gained emotional support and social
resources information from volunteers and social
workers, and were able to take home safety
measures and viclence-free parenting practices.
They have become more able to adapt and

integrate into the new environment.
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The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant -

Healthy Start Home Visiting Project
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An innovative and preventive child protective
service named "Healthy Start Home Visiting
Project” was initiated by the Against Child Abuse
in 1997. This project aimed at equipping parents-
to-be wha live in Tuen Mun, Yuen Lang and Tin
Shui Wai with knowledge and skills in nurturing
newborn babies. Through home visitation
conducted by trained volunteers, we hope that
anxiety and stress of parents-to-be in the pre- and

post-natal stages could be minimized.

The project objectives were to provide preliminary
support to parents with newborn, to enhance
value and attitude of children, to improve skills
of positive parenting and to make known social
resources and community network available to

help families with babies.

This project, which started in 1997, was originally
funded by the Community Chest of Hong Kong for
three years. In March 2000, the Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust took over the sponsorship for
two more years until 2002. The project evaluation
indicated that the stress and anxiety of these
parents-to-be could be relieved and child abuse
could therefore be prevented. As a result, the
Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust supported
this project under the Community Project Grant
from 2008 to 2011, and 2011 to 2014. We hope
more needy families could benefit from this

project.

A summary of this project in the reporting year is

as follows:
Publicity and Promotion
Project leaflets were distributed to the Tuen Mun

Haospital, Comprehensive Child Development
Services (CCDS), four Maternal Child Health

Centres (MCHCs), ten Integrated Family Service
Centres (IFSCs} and twelve non-governmental
organisations (NGOs). Besides, project social
workers and volunteers regularly visited MCHCs
to promote this service to parents-to-be so that
they might decide whether they wished to join our

project on a voluntary basis.

Home Visitation

In the reporting year, 100 families participated in
this project. Our project social workers conducted
intake visits to assess the family's eligibility and
to explain to them the project aims and services.
Subseguently, a pair of trained volunteers would
be assigned to provide home visitation to eligible
families for at least once a month every year.
The volunteers would also contact the families

regularly so as to provide support to them.

Volunteers Training

A total of 89 volunteers, both new and experienced,
took part in the project. Ten training sessions of
two hours each were arranged to equip them with
child pratection concept, skills and knowledge
on child management, communication skills and

knowledge of post-natal depression.

Regular sharing and Parent Education

To strengthen parenting skills of the target families
and volunteers, ten education sessions were held
in the reporting year. These sessions included
"Effective Parenting” and “Baby Health", music
warkshop for parent-child communication. These
sessions enabled the participants to acquire
positive parenting skills and establish a mutual
support network through meeting with other
participating parents.



Other Supporting Services

d.

Healthy Start Resource Library

Books, educational video tapes and
CDs on pre- and post-natal care, infant
development, home safety and positive
parenting are available for volunteers and

participating families.

Baby Gift Exchange Corner

To promote mutual help and environmental
protection awareness among our
participating families, parents were
encouraged to give away or exchange their
used baby equipment. Our project social
workers assisted in matching needed items

with donated items.

Velunteer Training Manual

The manual included the child protection
concept, home safety, positive parenting,
the role of volunteer and community

resource. The manual served as a training kit

for volunteers.

Quarterly Newsletter

In order to convey the message of
positive parenting to our target families
and volunteers, a newsletter is published
quarterly. Contents of the newsletter
comprise baby growth and development,

parenting tips and project infarmation.

Referral to receive community
resource

Volunteers would report the progress and
needs of the families to the project social
workers. Social workers would conduct
home visit if the families are found to have
emotional, marital, child management,
financial difficulties, etc., and would refer
them to appropriate services, such as
counseling services, psychiatric cansultation,
food subsidy scheme or financial assistance.
In the reporting year, a total of 32 referrals

were made.
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Daylily Project for Single/ Young Mothers
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With the support from the Community Chest of
Hong Kong and United Christian Hospital, the
Daylily Project for Single/ Young Mothers was
launched in April 2010. Daylily, which blessoms
in unfavorable canditions, is used to symbolize
mother in China. The project name implies

blessings for the mothers.

The Project has moved into its fourth year. It
provides trained mentors to support the single/
young mothers and their families through regular
visits, phone contacts and community activities so
that they can develop into effective mothers and
individuals, and are able to foster their children
with oppaortunities for optimal growth. Besides, the
projects aims to prevent problems of child abuse,
child neglect, unstable parenting and inadequate
home safty. This year, volunteer recruitment
was conducted smoothly and altogether 127
volunteers were selected as mentors. They were

trained in communication and interviewing skills,

home safety and crisis intervention. Furthermore,

different professionals were invited to provide
these mentors with knowledge on subjects like

child development, infant care and mental health.

From April 2013 to March 2014, the Daylily
Project served 53 single/ young mothers and
their children. The main referrers were the
Paediatric Unit and Prenatal Unit of the United
Christian Hospital and the Comprehensive
Child Development Services of the East
Kowloon Cluster. We provided the mothers with
information of community resources and referred
them to appropriate services when they were
in need of such services. Altogether, 21 events
including outings to Music Farm, Ocean Park and
Disneyland were organized for the families so that
they could gain more exposure and expand their
horizon. One mother expressed her thanks to the
volunteers in the Press Conference in November
2013. She said that the volunteers not anly showed
concern ta her, they also.taught her much child
care knowledge.
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Bless My Home Forever Volunteer Home Visitation Project
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With the support from the Community Chest of
Hong Kong, the Bless My Home Forever Volunteer
Home Visitation Project in Sham Shui Po District
has been launched since 2010. Through the social
worker's careful planning and the involvement of
volunteers, the Project provides regular volunteer
home visitation, sharing, diversified activities, child
safety education, and other support services to
the needy families. Through the reqular contact
between the trained volunteers and the families,
the families gain the support and care they need.
Besides, their awareness in positive parenting is

also enhanced.

Targer Families

The Project serves the deprived or low income
families in Sham Shui Po. They were mainly
referred by our hotline services, project families,
schools and integrated family service centres
in the Sham Shui Po District. They encountered
financial and housing difficulties and stress in life.
Their children had little social exposure because

of limited resources.

Volunteer Recruitment

The Project recruited over 60 volunteers.
We provided them with training
on related topics including
characteristics of the project
families, interview and
communication skills, child

developmental needs,

home safety, community =
resources and positive

parenting.

i

Home Visitation

Volunteers in pairs were matched with each
family. Home Visitation was conducted at |east
once @ month with regular follow-up phone calls.
Through home visitation, our volunteers showed
care and love to the families. They shared their
experience and parenting knowledge such as
positive parenting, home safety and community
resources with the families. Work of the volunteers
was closely monitored by the social worker. The
status of the families was regularly updated. Early

intervention could be carried out if needed.

Sharing and Gatherings with Target
Families

Throughout the past year, volunteer involvement
also came from the corporates, which joined the
Caring Company Scheme. Activities like trips to
Ocean Park, Hong Kong Disneyland, New Life
Farm and making cookies were arranged. Besides,
family gatherings under different themes were
held to promote the mutual sharing among the

parents.

Community Education

To further promote this Project and

to arouse public awareness on
child safety, talks and public
education display were

carried out.
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Since 2012, working in partnership with Save the
Children Hong Kong, the Parent-child Support
Line has extended its service hour to 9 pm (Monday
to Friday). The hotline service allows the public to
report suspected child abuse cases. It also allows
our social workers to provide phone counseling
and instant advice to parents, children and young
people. Moreover, other professionals can make
use of the support line to seek advice on the

handling of child abuse cases.

We launched a successful promotion of the
service last year. We distributed more than 10,000
information cards to nursery, kindergartens,
schools, integrated family service centres and
service units of non-government organisations to
introduce the Parent-child Support Line to families
and professionals, Mareover, we produced a series
of promotion broadcast an different platforms,
including Commercial Radio, Bus body of Kowloon
Mator Bus, bus shelter and tram shelter billboards.
This promotion has enhanced the message of

the importance of seeking prompt help in child

protection work to prevent possible deterioration

of parent-child relationship.

At the end of December 2013, a new mentoring
scheme training was conducted. We recruited 31
volunteers and arranged a 10-session training for
them. The trained volunteers are going to become
a big brother or big sister to provide support
service for children in need and help convey the
positive parenting skill to parents. We arranged
supervision for all mentors monthly to provide

support and guidance to the mentors.

The Parent-child Support Line is not just a channel
for reporting suspected child abuse cases. We
also aim at using it as a means to enhance public
awareness in the need to seek support and
help, to listen to the difficulties of parents or
caregivers, to pravide professional advice on child
management to parents and to give emotional
support to children. Besides, the line helps us to

provide immediate and in-depth follow-up service.
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Kids' Dream is the first child-led initiative in Hong
Kong to strive for the rights of children, It was
formally launched in August 2006 and its members
are mostly secondary school students aged under
18. Since its establishment, Kids' Dream has
been supported by Against Child Abuse (ACA)
and Hong Kong Committee on Children's Rights
(HKCCR). This aspired group continues to work
closely with the two agencies in organising and
implementing the annual children's council project
as well as many other child rights related activities.
Upon completion of the Children's Council Project
2013, those who were passionate in children's
rights work joined Kids' Dream. Their mission is to
promate the United Nations Convention an the
Rights of the Child (UNCRC) and to actualize the
concept of "Children speaking for Children".

The 1st Children’s Forum in ICANN

The Children's Forum was held alongside with the
46th ICANN (Internet Corporation for Assigned
Names and Numbers) International Meeting in
Beijing from 7 to 11 April 2013. Kids' Dream was
ane of the members of the 1st Children's Forum
in the ICANN Organizing Committee.
The Forum aimed to encourage
children participation on
the Internet governance

and enhance mutual

understanding between the children’s community
and the Internet industry. Ten children groups from
supporting organisations of different countries
attended. There were sessions on understanding
the role of ICANN, discussing various Internet
issues, building connections, and reviewing
ICANN's work in promoting children participation.
Opinions like child-protection and child privacy
were voiced and brought to the attention of the
ICANN board members.

Meeting with UN Members

The Chairman of United Nations Committee on
the Rights of the Child, Ms Kirsten Sandberg, and
Rapporteur, Ms Maria Herzog visited Hong Kong
and Macau from 19 to 23 August 2013. They met
with various NGOs and children groups before
the Government Hearing Session in Geneva. The
Kids' Dream members shared their concerns on
child participation, promotion and education
of children’s rights concepts and children’s
consultation about child-related policies. Also,
they shared their belief that an independent
Children's Commission allows the government to
think and plan policies from children’s
perspectives and solve
problems related to children

in a systematic way.

il
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Community Education & Advocacy

Throughaut the year, Kids' Dream conducted and attended the following talks, forums and workshops to

promate, advocate and share children's rights:

oo e

7 1o 11 April
20 April

3 and 12 May
28 June

30 July

10 August

20 August

26 August

30 and 31 August

26 and 27
September

5 October

18 Octaber

29 November and
13 December

30 November to
5 December

The 1st Children's Forum in ICANN
Attended the Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau Children's Rights Forum
Sharing ori the Media Education Programmie — Children's Rights of ETV Online, RTHK

U18 Partnership with Children’s Innovations: Child-friendly Community Parent-teacher
Workshop

Attended the Constitutional and Mainland Affairs Bureau Children's Rights Farum
Workshop on Children’s Rights for Kowloon District 1357th Cub Scout

Meeting with UN Member

Kids' Dream 7th Anniversary

Retreat camp

Attended the UN Committee on the Rights of Child in Geneva (Government Session)

Attended the Bth "Media Education Programme — Children's Rights"” Prize Giving
Ceremony

Talk on Children's Rights for Kwun Tong Maryknoll College

Children's Services Workshap on Children's Rights for student of Tsuen Wan Public Ho
Chuen Yiu Memorial Primary Schoaol

Attended the CRC Asia : The 1st Regional Children's Meeting
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Joyful Kids Group provides training in child
development and volunteer work for children and

youth,

From April 2013 to March 2014, altogether 56
children and youth were recruited. The group
members participated in various voluntary services
in the community such as hosting a game booth
in child protection carnivals in Tuen Mun District,
supporting the 1.1 Million Children's Campaign
Launching Ceremony, joining ACA Flag Day and
hosting “Children’s Vioice", an interactive sharing

farum.

The group members gave a highly impressive
performance when they hosted the sharing forum
which aimed at promoting child cyber safety and
harmonious parent-child relationship through
giving a due respect to children's voice. They
were confident in expressing their views openly by

video clips, pictures, drama and forum.

In the forum, we were honored to have Dr Jessica
Ho, our Agency Director, Dr Lee Man Yuk Ching,
Hon Secretary of our Executive Committee, Ms
Yeung Kin Yuet, Principal of TWGH's Ko Tech
Kin Memorial Kindergarten and Ms Lui Siu Ying,
Senior Social Work Officer of SWD FCPSU (Tuen
Mun) to share with the participants and gave the
parents many tips in positive parenting.

Our group leaders were devoted to training the
junior group members. The chairlady of Joyful
Kids Group, Crystal Leung was nominated to
participate in the Hong Koeng Youth Service Award
2013 as she was a committed and passionate

volunteer to serve the children for 16 years. Her

contribution to ACA was recognized.
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Against Child Abuse, Hong Kong Committee on
Children’s Rights and Hong Kong Committee
for UNICEF have jointly formed a Coordinating
Committee since 2000 to raise public awareness
on the United Nations Convention on the Rights
of the Child and to promote children's rights in
Hong Kong with the sponsorship of the HKSAR
Government. This year, with the pledged support
of the Children’s Rights Education Funding
Scheme, we have launched the Children's Council

2013 project.

On 23 November, in the Legislative Council
Complex, 59 Child Councilors debated three
motions formulated by themselves. These
mations were: The government should protect
the children’s rights to political participation; The
government should give grassroots children more
opporturities to participate in extra-curricular
activities; and The government should review and
monitor the implementation of "Other Learning

Experiences” in the New Senior Secondary

Curriculum. Representatives from public
organisations and Legislative Councilors including
Dr Kenneth Chan Ka Lok, Dr Fernando Cheung
Chiu Hung, Ms Emily Lau Wai Hing, Dr Leung Ka
Lau, Dr Alan Leong Kah Kit, Mr Charles Peter Mok,
Dr Elizabeth Quat, Mr Sin Chung Kai, Mr Tam
Yiu Chung, Dr Helena Wong Pik Wan and Mr Wu
Chi Wai, together with Ms Astor Chan Wai Sim,
Chairperson of Hong Kong Human Rights Monitor,
Mr Ricky Chu, Secretary-General of Independent
Police Complaints Council, Dr Fung Wai Wah,
President of Hong Kong Professional Teacher's
Union, Dr Ho Sai Mun, Vice Chairman of The Hong
Korig Association of the Heads of Secondary
School, Mr Leung Kee Cheong, Headmaster of
Fresh Fish Traders' School, Dr Gordon Tsui Luen
On, JP. Chairman of Committee on Home-School
Cooperation, Mr lvan Tan ¥i Chun, Member
of Secretariat of Scholarism and other guests

were present to exchange views with the Child

Councilors.
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The Chuk Yuen Centre Family Corner was set
up in April 2012. With the aims of promoting
child protection services and building a parent
support network in Chuk Yuen, we provide parent
education programmes for parents to acquire
positive parenting knowledge and skills. We also
organize family gatherings and outings to enhance
mutual support among family members. Besides,
a play room has been set up to offer play therapy

service for children with emational needs.

Parent Education Programme

In this year, there were 22 parent education
sessions conducted for 119 participants. Topics
covered 7 Happy Principles, positive parenting and
understanding Special Educational Needs (SEN).
The groups helped parents to have an in-depth
understanding on the topic and to enhance their

parenting skills. Cohesiveness was also developed

among parents who could support and share their

own experiences with each other. All participants
found the programmes inspiring and looked
forward to joining mare similar groups in future.

Family Gartherings and Outings

We conducted 14 sessions of family gatherings
for 318 participants. They included birthday
parties, parent-child artwork sessions and
volunteer services to the needy in the Chuk Yuen
Community. Four outings were also held for
about 180 participants. They visited Disneyland,
the Sai Kung Outdoor Recreation Centre, Tai Mei
Tuk and Pak Tam Chung Holiday Camp. Parents
usually spent much time handling their children’s
study. Conflicts would occur when children fail to
meet their expectations, These family activities
enabled parents to interact with their children
without tension. The participants were aware of
the benefits of positive communication with their

childran,




Children Groups

Four developmental groups were conducted
for 24 children with 110 attendances. These
groups aimed at equipping children who had
communijcation difficulties and were weak at
emotion management and social skills. After
attending the groups, the children had significant
improvement. They were more able to express
their emations positively and had learnt social
skills to interact with other children.

Play therapy services

We set up a play room in August 2013. Our social
workers made use of this facility to provide 28
sessions of therapy for the children with emaotional
needs. It was easier for these children to express
their feelings and thoughts in an environment that
is comfortable and safe. The parents reflected that
the play therapy service was effective to improve
their children's emotional management. It also
enhanced their understanding of the children’s
needs. To conclude, play therapy services
helped both the children and their parents in the

community.
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Yuen Long and Tuen Mun districts have been
developed for over 27 years. The child abuse
and neglect reports in these two districts have
remained the highest and the third highest
respectively among the 18 districts in Hong Kong.
When parents in these two districts encounter
hardship, such as weak social support network,
adjustment problems upon new arrival, inadequate
parenting knowledge and skills, financial and
marital problems, they do not know how to make
use of community services. They seem reluctant to

seek help for their child management problems.

With the sponsorship of Keswick Foundation,
the Against Child Abuse Tuen Mun Centre has
been servicing the Tuen Mun and Yuen Long
communities since 1986 with the objectives of
promoting preventive child protection services
and building up parents support network in the
two districts. The Centre strongly believes that
effective parenting will enhance parent-child
relationship and minimize child abuse and neglect.
In the past 28 years, its wark in promoting child
protection services has gained much support from

the parents and local community.

In 1989, the Family Corner was set up in the Centre
aiming at developing a parent mutual support
network and enhancing effective and positive
parenting. Families who are members of the Family
Corner are encouraged to use the centre facilities
and services. The Family Corner Volunteer Group
was also set up to plan and organise activities
for the parents. In the reporting year, a total of
201 family members joined the Tuen Mun Family
Corner and 104 female volunteers joined the
Family Corner Volunteer Group to assist in child
protection preventive programmes. The services

were as follows:

Good Mothers Sharing Time

Thirty five members of Family Corner Volunteer
Group acted as trainers in the Good Maothers
Sharing Time. They used the Good Mother
Networking Training Manual to convey positive
child protection message, parenting knowledge
and skills for the 31 participating mothers
through talks, group discussions, role plays and
home exercises. All participants treasured the
relationship built up during the course. After
the completing the six sessions, 19 participating

mothers joined the Family Corner Volunteer

Group.
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Toy Corner / Resource Corner

Members of the Family Corner are encouraged
to use centre facilities and services. Parents can
borrow parenting materials, such as parent-child
reading materials and toys. While children enjoy
themselves with toys in the toy corner, parents can
discuss and share their parenting experience with

the mother volunteers during the opening hours.

Good Mothers Leisure Corner

The Good Mothers Leisure Corner is held every
alternate Tuesday mornings. Through various
activities, such as educational talks, video sharing,
handicraft and gourmet session, parents share
their parenting concerns with each other. In the
reporting year, 369 parents participated in 22

activities,

Centre’s newsletters

A newsletter for members of the Tuen Mun Centre
Family Corner is published guarterly to promote
child protection messages, centre services and
parenting knowledge. The members of Family
Corner Volunteer Group and the Service Manager

are responsible for this publication.

Child Protection activity

The members of Family Corner Volunteer Group
perform a role as child protection ambassadors.
They assisted the Centre in organising child
protection activities. In the reporting year, the
group members assisted social workers in a child
protection carnival and a bus tour. With their
effort, child protection messages were widely

disseminated to the local community.

In the reporting year, 201 families were enrolled as Family Corner members. Altogether, 1,941 adults and 210

children attended the Family Corner activities. The number of books and toys borrowed was 181.
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The objective of this project was to deliver
knowledge and skills on positive child
management and family sex education for parents.
Children were empowered to protect themselves
from sexual abuse and sexual harassment.
They were also encouraged to express their
developmental needs positively. It was hoped that
harmonious parent-child relationship could be

developed in the family.

Sponsored by Sedan Chair Charities Fund, we
conducted a total of 12 talks, four small groups
on positive parenting and one day camp for
572 children and parents. Feedback from the
participants was positive and encouraging. The
overall satisfactory rate was 98% for the talks and

the activity groups, and 100% for the day camp.

Talks

The parents learned to identify children’s basic
and developmental needs, and to manage their
children in positive and non-violent ways. As
most of the parents felt stressful to deal with
their children's negative emotions, they acquired
knowledge and skills to manage their children's
emotions as well as controlling their own.
Besides, the parents were aware that a favourable
environment was important to facilitate their
children to learn. The younger children learned
how to protect themselves from sexual abuse
and realized the importance of respecting the

bodies of other people. For the children in upper

primary, they learned the definition of sexual
harassment and how to react to the undesirable
and unacceptable touches or contacts. They were
also taught to set boundaries in intimacy and build

up friendship with peers in a proper manner.

Positive Parenting Groups

The participating parents could freely share their
experience and difficulties in child management.
Mutual understanding and support had been
developed through sharing. Apart from learning
positive parenting skills, they came to understand
the relationship between children’s basic needs
and misbehaviour. They actively participated in
the structured activities and expressed their views
in the group discussions. They found the group

discussions and role plays very practical.

Day Camp

In the day camp, the families were free to
enjoy recreation facilities. The parent-child
communication was enhanced in a relaxed
environment. The knowledge and skills of
effective communication were introduced to the
parents and children through structured games
and activities in the workshop of the day camp.
Maoreover, the children tried to tune in the role of
parents to understand the feeling of their parents
during scenario discussions. The participants
expressed that the interactive design of the

workshop was practical and useful.
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The project aimed at equipping parents with
appropriate attitude, knowledge and skills to
implement family sex education. It also delivered
accurate sexual knowledge to children to meet

their developmental needs.

Over the past year, ACA conducted a total of
four talks and four workshops on sex education
for schools and non-government organisations
involving 398 participants. Feedback from the
participants was positive and encouraging. The
overall satisfactory rate was 98% for both talks and

workshops.

Through the talks and workshops, the students
in lower primary learned the private parts of boys

and girls as well as the common tricks used by

abusers. They also learned how to differentiate
between good and bad touches or contacts,
and how to react to bad ones. The students in
upper primary learned to deal with their physical
and psychological changes with an appropriate
attitude in the stage of puberty. From the small
group discussions and activities, tHEy were aware
of the issues of dating with respect to developing
long-lasting and intimate relationships. For the
parents, knowledge and skills of implementing
family sex education were introduced. The parents’
misconception about sex was also rectified. As a
result, they started to have positive views towards
sex and realized that sex education was essential
to the growth and development of children. They
felt more comfortable to talk about sex related

issues with their children after the programme.
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Educating parents is one of the most effective

means to prevent child abuse and neglect.

Under the reporting year, we organised three
parent education programmes, one in October
2013 for parents, one from November to
December 2013 for the public, and one in March
2014.

The tirst programme was a talk conducted by
Professor Norma Leben for parents. It aimed to
enhance parents’ positive parenting knowledge
and skills. The 210 participants found the

programme stimulating and were satisfied with it.

The second programme was called "Good

Mothers Sharing Time". It comprised & sessions

and was conducted by volunteers for 31 parents.
These volunteers used Good Mathers Networking
Training Manual to convey positive parenting to
the participants. Talks, group discussions, sharing,
roles plays and home exercises were arranged.
After the completion of the programme, most
participants treasured the relationship built up
with other participants during the programme. At
the end of programme, 19 out of 31 participants

Joined the Family Corner Violunteer Group.

In order to strengthen the positive parenting,
we conducted two sessions of "Effective
Parents Training Talk” for members of the Family
Corner Volunteer Group. Altogether, 30 parents
participated in the programme to acquired

knowledge and skills of positive parenting.
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The preventive approach in child protection is
a worldwide trend. ACA supports this approach.
We devote more effort in preventing child
abuse and neglect by disseminating messages
of child protection, enhancing positive
parenting knowledge and skills as well as child
empowerment. In this reporting year, 14 groups
were organized. Five of them were developmental
and therapeutic groups, five were networking
groups and four were mutual help groups. A total
of 3,517 participants attended the 278 sessions
conducted for these 14 groups.

Developmental and therapeutic groups

Two children therapeutic groups were organised.
One was called “Emotion Master” and the other
"Feelings Exploration Express”. The latter one
is an experiential learning process through the
use of Expressive Aris. It was well received by
children. The group provided an opportunity for
children to understand emotions and the way to
perform good behaviour. Besides, three parents
therapeutic groups named, "Happy Lesson in
Family", "Laughing Yoga for Effective Parenting”
and "Happy Family” were conducted. All three

were well received by the parents. They treasured
the relationship built up through the group

discussions and experience-sharing sessions.

Networking groups

The five networking groups were under the
"Good Mother Leisure Corner” project in Tuen
Mun Centre. They played an important role in
implementing preventive child protection service.
The project organised a number of activities to
enhance parents’ communication and positive
parenting. A mutual help support network was

developed.

Mutual help groups

In addition, the four mutual help groups named
“The Tuen Mun Family Corner Volunteer Group”,
"The Chuk Yuen Family Corner Volunteer Group”,
"Joyful Kids" and “Kids' Dream” also organised
many activities, including child protection carnival,
parents education workshop, child protection bus
tour, children sharing forum and child policy issues

advocacy.



EDIRERi

Preventive Service .

FEBEAENARYEEH EEFRERENR EEREENIEENEEM -FEERRFERERAW

ABLEE

Mass Programmes

ATEBREAIERFINT

REEEHEPORNE (2013F45280H)
BB BRE—BE (20135F5R17H)
BREE 2B AR ISIE (20135 75148)
FTaElEE (2013578218)
MRT% (2013578308 E8A18)
FEXILEHE 3 (2013588 118)
SR 2EBNE (20135F87188)

EEEN REFELEE  RELREE
FEhNEMB (2013510868)

B E AR TR BIARE S E
¥R B R R R L (20135E108278)

HHisEitEYE (2013FF103278)
#5Eh0FE (20138E115198)
EFEAGERE (2013511H218)
FFERBE—BiE (2013512815H)
BTERTME  METE (20135128288)

BRI IS AR — B (20135128
318)

BISEREERED (20145F18128)

FIEEEH - FENE B1iEiEs) (2014
F1H188)

HIBEED (2014€2H228)




ACA advocates by publicizing the importance of child protection and children rights through organising

different activities for our service users and the public. The following mass programmes were conducted this

year:

SpankOut Day cum Centre Open Day (28
April 2013)

Family Visit to Disnieyland {17 May 2013)

Joyful Kids Group Summer Tour {14 July
2013)

Parent-child Communication Day Camp (21
July 2013)

Parent-child Handicraft workshop (30 July
and 1 August 2013}

Visit to History Museurn (11 August 2013)

Joyful Kids Group Hong Kong Style (18
August 2013)

Child Pratection Camival cum Centre Open
Day at On Ting Estate (6 October 2013)

Parents Talk conducted by Professor Norma
Leben (27 October 2013)

"Sedan Chair Race & Bazaar" Game Booth
{27 October 2013)

ACA Child Protection Centre Opening (19
November 2013]

Annual General Meeting cum Dinner (21
Novermber 2013)

Family Christmas Gathering (15 Deceniber
23

Enlighten the Hope-Disney Movie “Frozen”
(28 December 2013)

Visit ta Ocean Park (Tuen Mun Centre (31
December 2013)

Service Users Gathering (12 January 2014)
Child Protection Bus Tour (18 January 2014)
ACA Flag Day (22 February 2014)




YL ol ek e 255

Preventive Service 4

#= THR#S

Volunteer Service

ETEG4ENRGHSTEREERNAS-F
FE RBS0BRETHRESRZIGS 8 BETE
DL BERE - FRBREERRIAHE EEREH
58 SEBRSERE SSAR BEESE
EIRERGETE KEBR FERSE - BFF
LB EWMIE R ZER R ERSTEF
EITRDFEETESRUIENTGY ZEF
FEEENRERSE ST TEEEEEMD
LESENZETE-.

FRENEEAMENE L ENEREF TFET
(EHR) 2 20135 A 25 T IRFEERIE13,338/ 1\
fEL LSS SIS THEES R  EIEMANE
BERSSE-

REET
AFEENREYETABYST - REERE B
e TFIEBR L -

BXEGTREMPOENHIEEE TERB14
FRaZERERETF-HRBIREERE
NS T REEABIEA-NERABRHAS T
fFEE WERMhETRE - WE2011FAR E
BRI RERTEHEAED THEDRTIRL
RMEEROFE EHEBFRERE TIFAER
He

REESEE—DEBES FEIIF#MICIER
EnMeESHE R ERBNSEBELE - t5ZNBEE
BT "EEEEOETIIEEE TiEEE
RESENHRAERRERN -BHIFRALE
BEEEBHPHBLOBREEE E-USHEER
WHBHNASH -t BERNT ERELE
Bx A S OnRFERSLF S0 E TEE iR
BEREnRE-

SIBLTHRAFEEICER EREENE
POFRIERE TSRS - BER NEFE
BERFPLHNBETRE B0 RRERSEH
BERETIF-hUBENENTLERINES
BENERSZ SRMAEH LERT LRSS
SREGRRIE -

BERSERTREREE TR BINET
RES R RINES TEE REAEMBETRIEET
FERTDI BEBFRERZHRESEE TS
I} USBREYREREEREBESSFNS BX
EERESHEN-

3 B AR ET I AR BH S
SRASEF LIFONE T B RAA HISAER
R ERMEFEERENEENRRERE -

45



a0

Volunteers play an important role in ACA projects.
In the review year, over 500 volunteers actively
involved in agency functions and worked for
different projects like the Chuk Yuen Centre Family
Corner Volunteer Group, Child Protection Home
Visitation Project for New Arrivals, Daylily Project
for Single / Young Mothers, Kids' Dream, Bless my
Home Forever Volunteer Home Visitation Project,
Parent-child Support Line, the Tuen Mun Centre
Family Corner Volunteer Group, Joyful Kids Group
and Healthy Start Home Visiting Project. They also
assisted in our service promotion activities, talks,
newsletter and annual report delivery, clerical

support and library service,

We were awarded 13,338 volunteer service
hours {Gold Award) presented by the Volunteer
Movement, Social Welfare Department in 2013.
We deeply thank our volunteers for their effort
and dedication to ACA services. Our service users
benefited much from their contribution.

QOutstanding Volunteer

Four volunteers were awarded Qutstanding
Volunteers of the Year. They are Ms Ma Man Ying, Mr
Lai Kwok Hei, Ms Mo Xiao Ning and Mr Gordon Fan.

Ms Ma Man Ying has been a volunteer of the Tuen
Mun Centre Family Corner for fourteen years. Now
she is a committee member of the Family Corner
and a convener of newsletter publication group.

Her kind personality has gained other volunteers’

appreciation. Since 2011, she has joined the
Healthy Start Home Visiting Project to care for
the families with pregnant women and newbarn
babies. She has put great effort in the child

protection work.

Mr Lai Kwok Hei is a working youth. Though he
was busy in work, he was committed in child
protection work. He supported the volunteer
training of Joyful Kids Group and promotion work
of children rights. Hei is friendly and willing to take
care of the children. His commitment has greatly
influenced his younger sister, who has joined the

volunteer services of the agency as well.

Ms Mo Xiao Ning is an active volunteer of the
Chuk Yuen Centre Family Corner, Throughout the
year, she assisted Family Corner in carrying out
different programmes. She showed willingness
to share her own parenting experience with other
parents. She always encouraged other parents
who encountered difficulties in child management
to join ACA services,

Mr Gordon Fan is a volunteer of Child Protection
Home Visitation Project for New Arrivals. Gordon
not only visited the families regularly to show his
concerns, he also actively participated with them
in different activities including visiting museums

and Palice Sport and Recreation Club.

We would also like to thank all volunteers for their

support to ACA child protection services.
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Talks/Seminars/Trainings

ACA is regularly invited by social service agencies,
universities, education institutes, secondary
schools, primary schools and kindergartens to
conduct talks, seminars and training sessions for
professionals, parents and children. The themes
include the child protection system in Hong
Kong, identification and handling of suspected
child abuse cases, multidisciplinary collaboration,
prevention of child sexual abuse, sex education,
child cyber safety, children's rights and children
empowerment, children’s emotion and behaviour,
positive parenting, child developmental needs and
child protection relzted legislation. The service
helps deliver child protection messages to a wider

population and achieve the objective of child

abuse prevention.

In the year under review, a total of 80 talks/
seminars/ training sessions were conducted, 15
of which were delivered to professionals, 33 to
parents and 37 to students. Altogether, 3,496
participants joined our programmes and their
positive feedback was most encouraging to our

work.

Information Dissemination

A total of 28 groups with 45 participants received
child protection infermation through visiting our
centres. These visitors were professionals and
students, both from local institutes, overseas and
those in the Mainland China, including Hong Kong
University, Chinese University of Hong Kong, Hong
Kong University of Science & Technology, Hong
Kang Baptist University, Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, Beijing Normal University and other
non-governmental organisations. Topics of child
protection system in Hong Kong, identification
and handling of child abuse cases, ACA services
and child related issues were shared with the

visitors.
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ACA has been providing social work placement
and internship programmes for university students
from the Departments of Social Work and Faculty

of Sacial Sciences.

SREENEE

In the year under review, we arranged eight
fieldwork placement and internship for students
from two local universities. They were given
opportunities to understand the child protection
systern, handling procedures of child abuse cases
and different aspects of child protection work.
They gained exposure to various services such as
multidisciplinary case conferences, child protection
certificate courses, group work and mass
programmes. Students arranged to perform field
work handled hotline, investigation and casework
under close supervision. Others conducted
reviews and studies on various concerns of child
protection. They also had opportunities to assist
in organizing and hosting project activities. They
expressed that they treasured and appreciated the
learning opportunities provided by ACA.

List of Students for Fieldwork Placement and Internship Programme

EBREAE
Hong Kong Baptist University

B3] Ms Cheng Mei Lei, Vivien
FAZER Ms Lam Mei Shan, Jackie

R Ms Ng Suk Yee, Suie
BEHE Ms Wong Hiu Chit, Tobby
&ILH Ms Wong Tsz Fong, Ida
WERMEE Ms Wong Wing Wah, Vien

SEPAE

[k Ms Chan Lok Lam, Lorane
The Chinese University of Hong Kong  sme ws Huang Pe

iyi, Daisy
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Making use of the experience in child protection
work we have accumulated in the past 35 years,
we have conducted child protection certificate
courses since 2000. The courses facilitate sharing
with frontline professionals and enable early
identification and effective intervention of child

abuse cases,

A 4-session Certificate Course on Child Protection
and a 3-session Certificate Course on Child Sexual
Abuse were conducted in May 2013 and February
2014 respectively. There were more than 40
participants. They came from various professional
disciplines, including medical, education, children
and youth service, residential service, family
service, early education, student guidance service

as well as universities. 98% of the participants were

satisfied with the courses,

We were also invited to provide training on child
protection, assessment and handling of child
abuse, domestic violence and the role of frontline
professionals for the statf of Hong Kong Society
for the Protection of Children, Hong Kong Sports

Institute and Macau Judiciary Police.

Besides, our Director and a social worker
provided a training course for multi-disciplines in
Shanghai from 8 to 10 July. The content included
an overview of the global development in child
protection work, identification and handling of
suspected child abuse cases, their prevention and
treatment. It was a good opportunity to share our
experiences and |learn from our counterparts in

other regions their local trends and characteristics.
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The 34" Annual Press Conference and
Annual General Meeting
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The 34th Annual Press Conference was held on 21
Movember 2013. Dr Jessica Ho, the ACA Director
reported service highlights and statistics for the
year 2012/13 and the trend of child abuse. She
believed that early prevention services to support
parents with young children are urgently needed.
Therefore, ACA provides volunteer home visitation
service for families with a new born and for new
arrival families with children aged 0 1o 5. She also
shared our concerns and recommendations in the

area of child protection.

Ms Wu, service user of Healthy Start Volunteer
Home Visiting Project, and Ms Kei Kei, Daylily
Project for Single/Young Mathers also shared
their experience with ACA. They became positive
after they had received support from volunteers
of our home visitation programme, They thanked
ACA and the volunteers for their support and

encouragement.

In addition, Save the Children Hong Kong, our
collaborative partner of the project of Parent-
child Support Line told the canference that they
were glad to support ACA to provide counselling
and support services to the parents, children and

professionals in the year.

The Annual Press Conference was followed by
the 34th Annual General Meeting cum Dinner.
We were honored to have Mrs Nancy Rhind, ACA
advisor, Mr Leung Lit On and Mr Paul Liu, ACA
Honorary Legal Advisors as guests to attend the
AGM.

Apart from the formal agenda of the AGM, we
presented souvenir ta Mr Leung Lit On for his
service as ACA's Honorary Legal Advisor for the
past 12 years. Dr Patrick Cheung, the Chairpersan,
introduced Mr Paul Liu, who would take up the

role as the new Honorary Legal Advisor.

We then presented Long Service Award to Mr
Tsang Kwok Wai who has served ACA for 15
years. Outstanding Volunteer Awards were also
presented to Ms Ma Man Ying, Mr Lai Kwok
Hei, Ms Mok Siu Ning and Mr Gordon Fan. We
expressed our thanks for their dedicated service
and sincerely hoped they would continue to

support our child protection work in the years to

came

108



110

A ST

Publicity & Fundraising Events

—)-{=

ACA Flag Day
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ACA is a unigue Non-government Organization
providing child protection services in Hong Kong.
Over the past 35 years, we have been striving
to promote child protection, and to ensure a
nurturing, caring and non-violent enviranment for
the optimal growth of children. To strengthen our
resources, we, with the approval from the Social
Welfare Department, organised flag sale in the
New Territories on 22 February 2014.

Through publicity, the child protection message
was conveyed to the public. Recognition and
support to ACA child protection services from the
community was clearly demonstrated from the
events arranged for the Flag Day. We recruited
around 5,000 volunteers to help out on that day
and some corporates such as the Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, China
Construction Bank (Asia), MTR Corpaoration
Limited and RoadShow Holdings Limited
supported the Flag Day by offering free publicity
and space for setting up flag selling stations. Many

others supported this event by making donation.

It was encouraging that a total of HK$1,122,253

was raised,
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Staff Retreat
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The Staff Retreat was held on 30 November at
the Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups —
Jockey Club Sai Kung Qutdoor Training Camp. We
were pleased to have the presence of Dr Patrick
Cheung, ACA Chairperson, Mr Nicholas Jim, Vice
Chairperson, Mr James Ng, Hon Treasurer, and
Dr Lee Man Yuk Ching, Hon Secretary, to join our
staff retreat. In the morning session, our Director
and Managers led all staff to review the services
delivered the year before, and outlined the work-
plan of the Agency in the coming year. Dr Cheung
and Dr Lee also shared with us on the topics of risk
assessment of suspected child abuse cases and
effective writing skills respectively. The sharing
was practical and helpful for us to enhance our

professional knowledge and skills.

After lunch, we participated in some team building
activities in a scenic environment. The activities not
only enhanced our team spirit, but also facilitated
mutual understanding among colleagues. The
activities of the day concluded with a visit to Sai

Kung followed by a hearty seafood dinner.
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ACA statf members are encouraged to attend
training programmes, both local and oversess,
to enrich their professional knowledge and skills
needed for child protection work. Through
training, they are able to keep track of current
trends of child protection services delivered by
their professional counterparts, both in Hong
Kong and overseas, so as to improve the quality of
ACA services. Such training also helps our social
workers understand child protection from wider

perspectives,

Local Programmes

Last year, ACA staff joined different local training
programmes organised by ACA and other
organisations. These programmes included early
childhood training for autistic parents, cognitive
behavior therapy, youth mental health seminar,
happy living trainer course, cyber safety seminar,
handling and support mental health seminar, anti-
corruption briefing, MPF and insurance briefing

session.

Owverseas Programmes

An ACA social worker represented the agency
to participate in the First Policy Dialogue and
Sixth Regional Consultation of Child Helplines
{CHI). The theme of the conference was "Voices
of Children and Youth in Asia and Pacific”. Work
in our Parent-child Support Line project and child
protection services in Hong Kong was shared with
ather participants of the conference.

We also arranged another social worker to attend
the 28th San Diego International Conference 2014
which was held from 28 to 31 January 2014. She
interacted with different professionals on the best
practice of child protection and learnt a lot from

participating in the Conference.

EMW, .
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Appendix I:

EBA- BERENANITEESHERE
Patron, Honorary Advisors &
Executive Committee Members
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PATRON

Mrs Regina Leung

ADVISORS
Mrs Selina Chow GBS, OBE, JP

Dr Hwang King Hung

Professor Felice Lieh Mak, GBS, CBE, IP

Mrs Anne Marden, MBE, JP
Mrs Nancy Rhind
Ms Maria Tam Wai Chu, GBS, CBE, JP

Mr Charles C.L. Yang, BBS, IP

HONORARY LEGAL ADVISOR
Mr Leung Lit On*

Mr Paul Liu*

HONORARY AUDITORS

S Y Yang & Company
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HONORARY CONSULTANT ON CHILD
PSYCHIATRY

Professor Kelly Lai

HONORARY CONSULTANT ON
ARCHITECTURAL & ENGINEERING

Mr Bosco Ho

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Dr Patrick Cheung Chairperson

Mr Nicholas Jim Vice Chairperson
Mr James Ng Han Treasurer
Dr Lee Man Yuk Ching Hon Secretary
Dr Patricia Ip

Dr Gladys Lam

Dr Chow Chun Bong, BBS, JP
Dr Patrick Ip
Mr Keith Kwok

Dr Jessica Ho Director

* BAEERE 2013 5 11 B 21 BN SEESERT R 50 EESEEN B FRERE T
Mr Leung Lit On stepped down fram the pest of Honorary Legal Advisar with effect fram 21 November 2013. On same

day, Mr Paul Liu took up the position.
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Member Lists of Sub-committees
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MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE

Dr Patrick Cheung Chairperson

Mr Nicholas Jim Vice Chairperson
Mr James Ng Hon Treasureer
Dr Lee Man Yuk Ching Hon Secretary
Dr Jessica Ho Director

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
SUB-COMMITTEE

Dr Patrick Cheung* Chairperson
Dr Patricia Ip* Chairperson
Dr Gladys Lam

Dr Chow Chun Bong, BBS, JP
Dr Lee Man Yuk Ching

Dr Anne Cheung

Dr Patrick Ip

Dr Shiu Yiu Keung

Dr Jessica Ho Director

© EEMES R 2014 F 152 OF S FERE \EEFIMG - TRUSEEEEEET SEEH.
Dr Patricia Ip stepped down the pasitions of the Chairperson of Professional Development Sub-committee with effective fram 24
January 2014, Dr Patrick Cheung took up the position with the same effsctive date,



E{8/)vH PUBLICITY SUB-COMMITTEE

oy Y fod £ Dr Patrick Cheung Chalrperson
EENEE Dr Patricia Ip

AEWEE Mr James Ng

BERAEE Mr Nicholas Jim

FXEFEL Dr Lee Man Yuk Ching

L Mr Keith Kwok

Pt el Mrs Matrena Fong

A 8LkiEL BHE Dr Jessica Ho Director
ADER A HUMAN RESOURCES SUB-COMMITTEE
EEEKE T Mr Nicholas Jim Chairperson
A% E Mr James Ng

RGBT WHRES Dr Patrick Cheung Ex-officio Member
B+ i Dr Jessica Ho Director

EEfETE HELE Mr Lo Tak Kin Staff Representative
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Member Lists of Sub-committees

CHILD PROTECTION INSTITUTE

RE TS ESER STEERING COMMITTEE

RAGMER *E Dr Patrick Cheung Chairperson
A& sa%TE Mr James Ng

FXEREL Dr Lee Man Yuk Ching

WEEAE Mr Keith Kwok

it e Ms Eliza Yau

ERE LT fEsr Dr Jessica Ho Director
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List of Staff Members
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THER:

RIRIG 2+

gitEE:

PEELT  (F2013F48)
HE2FL+  (H2013F58)
SRREETEE
EHELE  (E2013%9A)
REkE4+  (FH2013F108)
FINERE .

L TS

M I ERR .

ARIFAEEE

FERELL (F£20135F88)
FUWR+

RS RRESE (F3201359A)
it L :

F AAE Eosn (£2013%68)

Head Office :

Director :

Dr Jessica Ho
Administration Manager :

Ms Christin Cheng

Development & Training Manager :

Ms Lau Yin Ling

Administrative Officer :

Ms Wenise Chaung

Accounts Officer :

Ms Joyce Leung  (Till Apr 2013)
Ms Gloria Kwok  (From May 2013)
Funding and Promotion Officer :
Ms Priscilla Chong (Till Sep 2013)
Ms Vanice Chan  (From Oct 2013)
Part Time Caretaker :

Ms Cheung Shuk Yu

Chuk Yuen Office :

Service Managers

Ms Kit Wong (Till Aug 2013}
Ms Lee Yu Po

Mr Lo Tak Kin (From Sep 2013)

Social Workers :

Ms Winnie Lo {Till Jun 2013)
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List of Staff Members

(£2013%F8H)
(E2013F9H)
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(Z2013%78)
(2201388)
(E2014518)
(E2014E25)

Mr Lo Tak Kin (Till Aug 2013)
Ms Yette Tam (Till Sep 2013)
Ms Sarah Cheung

Ms Agnes Choi

Ms Candy Lai

Ms Kennis Leung

Mr Peter Ng

Project Officers/ Project Social Workers
Mr Edward Ngai  (Till Jul 2013)

Ms Ellen Pak (Till Aug 2013)
Ms Alice Ng (Till Jan 2014)
Ms Jessie Lee (Till Feb 2014)
Ms Vicky Chan

Ms Lau Wing Chi

Ms Quence Li

Ms Maggie Tsang

Ms Yvonne Wai

Ms Wong Man Ki
Administrative Officer :

Ms Glorise Wu

Project Assistants

Mr Just Leung

Ms Gill Tse

Ms Amy Yam



aIHEE
DEREYE
BEE .

wmEMXL

FEFVIRSEAS -

ARISATIE
BREXE
it T :
SRzt
S [
Rl
wERIS L
SHEIEHIE
FNIERE
WX EEE
FEEE R
EiEEE
faE gt
ITHERE
BlxExt
EEE
PREEE L+

(E2013E78)
(E20135108)
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Driver/Messenger :
Mr Tsang Kwok Wai
Caretaker :

Ms Hau Kam Lan

Tuen Mun Office :

Service Manager

Mr Joseph Wong

Social Warker :

Ms Chris Ng

Project Officers:

Ms Novel Ng

Ms Donna Wong

Project Assistants :

Mr Edgar Li (Till Jul 2013)
Mr Gary Wong (Till Oct 2013)
Mr Cliff Lai

Flag Day Assistant :

Ms Edo Ho (Till Mar 2014)
Administrative Officer:

Ms Betty Lau

Caretaker :

Ms Chan Chui Yuk
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Appendix 4:
AR #5 B3R

Services Charts

BFR—: ASEELBAREEE

Chart 1 : Nature of Hotline Calls and Drop-in Services

A % 2 50 Ko LA Fd i HEEERER
Service Enquiry Suspected Abused Cases
/Personal Problem 409 (28%)
555 (38%)

BRREY Physical Abuse 194 (47%)

HAthfE28:
KESN - BIARRE {4230 Sexual Abuse 75(18%)
Other Problems: /
Family Violence,
Marital Problems
25 (2%)

it AP RE Neglect 64 (16%)

S EE Mulliple Abuse 47 (12%)
IEER4S Psychological Abuse 29 (7%)

(ki ]
Child Management
456 (32%)

28 Total : 1,445
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BlFR_ : ZAREEEE Sh ot iR 5 2K IR

Chart 2 : Sources of Hotline Calls and Drop-in Services

s
; B Abuser
BEAL Family Member 708 (49%)
Professional
272 (18%)

RS
Children's Mother

480 (68%)

DRIEE
Public/Neighbour

422 (29%) FRE$% Children's Relative/Friend 129 (18%)
5RE 32§ Children's Father 70 (10%)

52 & Children 29 (4%)

— {88l Total : 1,445
H&H Sources 218 No. B43tE%
(1)  ZEERKS Family Members
1.1 GESHH Children's Mother 4B0 (68%)
1.2 K E%% Children's Relative / Friend 129 (18%)
1.3 EREZEH Children's Father 70 (10%)
52 & Children 29 (4%)

sJ &t Sub-total 708 (100%) m
429

A5 | #8FE Public / Neighbour

(3] B # )\t Professional
BRSTHETE PEWEEMRRLT

31 School / SGO / SGT / SSW ne 8
3.2 FEEFHE Non-governmental Organisation 83 6
3.3 EIEF FELLFT Social Welfare Department Unit 35 2
3.4 HIMEATRMLNESRD/EER 15 1
Kindergarten / Nursery / Child Care Centre / Creche
3.5 HthFIFFLEEP Other Government Department 15 1
36 BE#itT Medical Social Worker 4
3.7 B Medical Practitioner 3
3.8 EREK/GIEEZR Clinical Psychologist 2
3.9 FiERE Religious Organisation 2
3.10 B7H Police 1
| |/\&t Sub-total 272 18
(4)  {HIE Mass Media 22 2
(6) FEREE Abuser 21 2

=27 Total
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BR= : BREESHFREE B HERZENRIE
Chart 3 : Sources Where Callers Obtained Hotline Number and

Drop-in Services

%8 Sources

BhLk 2R EE AR ACA Service

%1% Mass Media

A% / #ifE Friend / Neighbour
BEE2\7] Telephone Company
B# School

FEE FHEFE Non-Governmental Qrganisation

It & TIF#E Social Worker

it & IEFE | TIATLEPIELER SWD / Department Hotline

FEALE Family Member

BEl% / % .\ B Hospital / Medical Officer

7 Police
i={RIERD Legal Aid
Al F Parents

GIEBAR VE T 54 Psychologist | Psychiatrist

&% B District Officer
2 HiERE Not Reveal
22 Total

BRI : PhEEH R ERN X ERTEL

Chart 4: Residence of Children Involved

Wong Tal Sin #8701l
Tuen Mun HM
Kwun Tong BR3E

Sham Shul Po ki

Yuen Long / Tin Shui Wai JnBR/Z7kE

Sai Kung / Teeung Kwan O AE/HTER

Kin City/Tokwawan/Hunghom FLRE 4/ 1 JTL 38/ £ #l)

HK Central/Western #BHTEE
HK Eastern 22

Kwai Taing / Kwai Chung 38 B/3E5F
Istand BEE

YMT ! MK/ TST S/ EE /A0 0E
Shatin / Ma On Shan 2 H (il
HK Southern BB

Tsuen Wan £

Wanchai # F

Sheung Shui / Fanling k7 /#55
Tal Po K8

Others (eg. Overseas) Eff ( F§44)
Naot Reveal 748558
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. 61 (58%)
53 (4%)
50 (4%)
. 38 (3%)
a8 (3%)
34 (3%)
34 (3%,)
32 (3%)
. 27 (2%)
27 (2%)
26 (2%)
24 (2%)
18 {1%)
9 (1%)

o 11 (1%)

#E No. B3t %

836 58
373 26
72 5
36 3
29 2
28 2
15 1
14 1
4
4
3
2
1
1
1
26 2
1,445 100
172 [14%)
148 (12%)
118 {10%)
107 (9%}
A8 Total : 1,221
. 187 (16%)



BRA: FIiESREZFR
Chart 5 : Age of Children Involved

18 BRELLl & AEER

Years or above Not Reveal
37 (3%) B84 (7%) 0-2 & Years
15 - 17 &% Years 152 (12%)
64 {5%) -
12- 14 5% Years | L
155 (13%) A5 Tears
250 (20%)
9-11 B Years 6 - B 5 Years
298 (19%) \ 251 (21%)

= ® Total : 1,221

0-2 &% Years 152 12
3-5 250 20
6-8 251 21
9-1 298 19
12-14 155 13
1517 64 5
18 Ll | or above 37 3
2 HEETE Not Reveal B4 7

2¥ Total
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B3RS : REEEEEBREZTENRF
Chart 6 : Suspected Abuser's Relationship with Children

REER
Not Reveal
" 26 (6%)
Othe REMRA
& Family Member
331 (71%)

e

FERERE

Non-family Member
105 (23%)

=

& A8 Total : 465

3% Relationship B3 %
(1) FEME Family Member

1.1 2% Mother 149
1.2 3238 Father 78
1.3 3 Both Parents 76
1.4 [HE Grandmother 10
1.6 iH3 Grandfather 7
1.6 558 Brother

1.7 #3Z Step-father 3
1.8 787} Step-mother 1

\ET Sub-total
(2) FEZEERE Non-family member

2.1 3BT Teacher 34
2.2 ¥/ AR/ [R5 Relative / Friend / Schoolmate 40
2.3 {48 Caregiver 13
2.4 H|EF Tutor / Coach ]
2.5 BEXE.A Stranger g9
V5t Sub-total 105
(3)  EHfth Others 3
(4)  J2H:ES Not Reveal 26

= Total

a2
17
186

[.S= T S B v B < = S |
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BIR+t : 1,445 R W NE R iR 2 RS
Chart 7 : Services Rendered for 1,445 Hotline Calls and Drop-in

Services

EEEAENE /

Telephone Contact 1,661

BN T EEMER
Collateral Phone Cantact 327

ARE
Investigation 136

ﬁﬂ“—"/

Referral L

MAZEHR vt

Office Interview 106

B V4 v 48 Total : 2,358
r

BN : ERREREMEHERETZESRE
Chart 8 : Referrals Made at Hotline and Drop-in Level

BitE TIERTS / B s T
School Social Work Service/ BE i CIRER
SGO/SGT Clinical Psychology  sgafichis

1 (1%) Unit 1 (1%)  Psychiatric Centre

1 (1%) it EiRE
Wit E LIRS ((RFE 2 B 52 & R 7% 2%)
Medical Social Work SWD (FCPSU)
Service 7 (6%) 34 (31%)
T ——— ~
FEBUAT S

NGO

10 (9%) -7

it =

o NGO qu*:Lé}) (Fr& RERHE D)
23 (21%) SWD (IFSC)
32 (30%)

@8 Total : 108
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E=A : AEEXREE

Chart 9 : Nature of Investigation Cases

=
ild Care &
Management (at risk) 3 (2%) ﬁﬁﬁi@ |
31 (23%) o L’Eﬂt%} ses
58821 Physical Abuse 26 (62%)
2 ] I 7B P8 HE Neglect 9 (21%)
Child Management [ #4238 Sexual Abuse 4 (10%)
59 [14%) 2B 1% Psychological Abuse 2 (5%)
- ZIEEFF Multiple Abuse 1 (2%)
@2 Total : 135

Bz : B13SEHERERRARE

Chart 10 : Services Rendered for 135 Investigation Cases

HiZEEER
Telephone Contact

FER R AR
Collateral Phone Contact

FE /S i 256
Home Visit / Visit
 SARTE R —_— 181
Office Interview
BiE .,
Letter

B25

494

i e— 4
Referral

taRAIEy —_— a4
Collateral Visit

EE -
Collateral Interview

- BRUEEEE o
Multidisciplinary Case Conference 10

B Total - 1,712
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Chart 11 : Referrals Made at Investigation Level

HER Hitn

BRGHE TEARYS | S e T EDB Others
School Social Work Service / 2 (5%) 4 (9%)

SGO/SGT HEEfE
2 (5%) (FRERERBEFD)
SWD (IFSC)
10 (23%)

Bt E AR a0 ———

MssU
3 (7%)

N

i
o

FERL AT bR

(f &R ERBEFRD)
NGO (IFSC)

3 (7%)

EET E
(REEZ L K SR EAIEE)
SWD (FCPSU)

10 (23%)

FERY MR
NGO
9 (21%)

fa% Total : 43

BR+= : ZARAEREERENRE

Chart 12 : Reasons for Referrals at Investigation Level

BTEARREREZRE : — EOH %
Reasons for Referrals to Other Agencies / Institutions

558 PRFE Counselling Service 27 63
4+ EW E2B Financial and Tangible Assistance 7 186
FETFIRTE Psychiatric Service 4 g
EEF/IERR#E Clinical Psychological Service 1 2
HrEFERA %/ B & 2% Day-care Service/Small Group Home Service 2 5
Hith Others 2 5

{H2 Total 43 100
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BFXR+=: EX4E
Chart 13 : Nature of Casework

BHE
Child Management
S anmx

—\ 33(32%)

SiEEF
Physical Abuse 16 (46%)

SHEER
Multiple Abuse 6 (18%)

| DnAAREEE
Neglect 6 (15%)

tEEI0
Sexual Abuse 4 (12%)

EHME (AEM) o
Child Mana%;ma:; — g}aﬁﬁﬁgm: Abuse 3 (9%)
ris

47 (46%)

i®®Y Total : 103

B+ : HE  BHERCKREERF
Chart 14 : Present Abode of Abused Children / Children-At-Risk

BYgRE O e s7)
Living with Both Parent ’

HESRE AT——_———

Living with Mother : 34 (30%)
RIZBELE Mmoo
Living with Father 8%
MiHi AR E
Living with Grandparent el

—

EREBREREZR -—
Living in Children's Home/ 3 {3%)
Small Group Home

sEmEE © o,

Living with Relative HE# Total : 111
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B=R+H : B103EESEFREHE RS

Chart 15 : Services Rendered for 103 Cases

EiR RN

Telephone Contact

WAEEH
Office Interview

ek | a3

Home Visit [ Visit

TERAE AR
Collateral Phone Contact

L H Ty
Referral

&EiE
Letter

1aRERES
Collateral Visit

E=EER

Financial Assistance

RS
Case Conference

ST AHE &l

Multidisciplinary

Case Conference

429

62

43

38

18

13

358

347

88 Total : 2,366

1,057
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ElR+75: B e = / EllAR

Chart 16 : Talks/Seminars/Trainings

SR Target No. of Frog}raa?'nfz
(1) E% A+ Professional 15
1.1 BRFIEZ A+ Multidisciplinary audience 10
1.2 # T Social Worker 5
(2) FEK Parent 33
(@ 245 Student 31
3.1 B (ihEE) Student (Nursery) 2
3.2 B\ (/vBY Student (Primary) 7
3.3 8% (R &) Student (Secondary) 18
3.4 B4 (A5 Student (University) 4
(4) #T Volunteer 1

i=e Total

SIAE

Participants

709
618
91
1,056
1,725
146
898
600

81
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ZrEEEEEAEE®T On Ting Estate Estate Management Advisory Committee
BANMRES Save the Children Hong Kong
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HEREE Zonta Club of Hong Kong Il
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& Head Office

SElramEHEERDIM3E

13/F, Corn Yan Centre, 3 Jupiter Street, North Point, Hong Kong
|5 Tel - 35425722

8= Fax 35425709

HE Email : aca@aca.org.hk

M@ dhi Chuk Yuen Centre
SN EEE A ITTE A iR 10710858

107-108, G/F, Wai Yuen House, Chuk Yuen (North) Estate,
Wong Tai Sin, Kowloon, Hong Kong

&% Tel : 2351 6060
BEH Fax : 27528483

diP9da M Tuen Mun Centre
SEMT M2 EIEFIB407T-409F

Room 407-409, Ting Cheung House, On Ting Estate, Tuen Mun,
New Territories, Hong Kong

EF Tel 24502244
[®HE Fax ' 2457 3782

&R Hotline : 2755 1122
#88 Web page : www.aca.org.hk




